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2,374,576,570 78.59
-6,932,718 -0.23
2,367,643,852 78.36
653,718,658 21.64
3,021,362,510 100.00
2022 10
()
1 3,000 70,265 210,794,445| 82,990|  248,970,000| 8.24
2 3,000 52,545 157,635,308| 39,490 118,470,000 3.92
3 18,000 5,845 105,216,628 6,400 115,200,000 3.81
4 18,000 3,573 64,311,006 4,395 79,110,000 2.62
5 3,000 23,096 69,286,780 22,385 67,155,000 2.22
6 3,000 21,904 65,713,282 19,630 58,890,000 1.95
7 12,000 4,501 54,011,524 4,524 54,288,000 1.80
8 6,000 9,093 54,560,119 7,860 47,160,000 1.56
9 3,000 18,583 55,749,500 15,540 46,620,000 1.54
10 6,000 6,628 39,769,918 7,441 44,646,000 1.48
11 9,000 2,741 24,671,897 4,767 42,903,000 1.42
12 9,000 4,187 37,683,140 4,655 41,895,000 1.39
13 9,000 6,342 57,074,947 4,590 41,310,000 1.37
14 12,000 2,355 28,261,823 3,140 37,680,000 1.25
15 15,000 2,185 32,781,835 2,157 32,355,000 1.07
16 7,200 5,768 41,529,908 4,446 32,011,200 1.06
17 9,000 3,984 35,860,027 3,450 31,050,000 1.03
18 15,000 1,980 29,692,814 2,060 30,892,500 1.02
19 15,000 1,888 28,323,130 2,047 30,697,500 1.02
20 3,000 12,367 37,102,240 9,988 29,964,000 0.99
21 3,000 8,530 25,591,424 9,842 29,526,000 0.98
22 3,000 7,154 21,462,849 8,974 26,922,000 0.89
23 3,000 8,070 24,210,127 8,491 25,473,000 0.84
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28 3,000 9,676 29,027,350 6,956 20,868,000 0.69
29 1,500 13,883 20,824,155 13,875 20,812,500| 0.69
30 3,000 7,406 22,216,571| 6,890 20,670,000| 0.68
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2021
20,956,539 26,493.73
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2021 11 36,862,706,771 27,842.11
12 7,322,258,484 28,828.81
2022 6,326,579,139 27,037.70
3,932,762,309 26,431.45
3,313,787,596 27,895.95
1,206,443,955 26,934.96
21,652,741 27,373.88
20,956,539 26,493.73
22,056,638 27,884.50
22,133,431 27,981.58
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2,872,704,652 25,828.33
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45

(in)

@iv)

@

(b

©
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(D
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(in)

Q)

(i)
@

(b
©

(D

©)
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@

W)

Q)
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©
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©
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397

0.1
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Bloomberg www. fundinfo.com

@ (b ©
(D

€))

(b)

©

)

O

®

@
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Q)

@

Q)

Q)
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O
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30

30
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(i) 30
(i)

39.1

30

90

90

781273



90

@iv)
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131

23 103
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2022

30

3,4

3,4

12
11

13

2022 12

J.P.

83/273

2016
2022

225
30

2,252,965
2,861
575,327
174,540

2,700

3,008,393

(43,832)
(9,832)
(438)
(3,263)
(14,806)
(4,248)
(2,385)

(993)

(79,797)

2,928,596
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2021 30

2016 225
2021 30

3,4 17,589,263
16,157
283,381
332,877

4,400

18,226,078

3,4 (4,262)
9 (20,550)
(2,474)

12 (926)
11 (3,733)
13 (4,556)
(5,110)

(699)

(494)

(42,804)

18,183,274
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2021 2022 30
2016 225
2022 30
7 (817,654)
218,472
(599,182)
9 (23,221)
12 (2,632)
11 (11,073)
(2,567)
(758)
13 (3.110)
10 -
(5,325)
(48,686)
14 (153,615)
(801,483)
(33,459)
(834,942)
2021 29 2016 JPX 400
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2020 2021 30

2016 225
2021 30

7 4,417,129

279,570

4,696,699

9 (23,926)
12 (17,147)
11 (6,261)
(2,899)

(719)

13 (3,419)
10 (141)

(2,806)

(57,318)

14 (151,125)

4,488,256

(42,715)

4,445,541

2021 29 2016 JPX 400
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2021

2022
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30

2016 225
2022 30

18,183,274

52,030,012

(66,449,748)

(14,419,736)

(834,942)

2,928,596




2020

2021

90/273

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

30

2016 225
2021 30

18,885,154

12,028,153

(17,175,574)

(5.,147,421)

4,445,541

18,183,274




2021

2022
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2016 225
2022 30

(834,942)

153,615
(218,472)

33,459

(866,340)

15,336,298

39,570

1,700
(2,577)

158,337

14,666,988

(33,459)

231,768

14,865,297

52,030,012
(66,449,748)

(153,615)

(14,573,351)

291,946

283,381

575,327
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2020

2021
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30

2016
2021

225
30

4,445,541

151,125

(279,570)

42,715

4,359,811

972,140
(1,228)
(790)
(33,626)

(167,877)

5,128,430

(42,715)

290,362

5,376,077

12,028,153
(17,175,574)

(151,125)

(5,298,546)

77,531

205,850
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283,381
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EEA AIFM

13

TOPIX 2018 S&P 500

201612

2018 S&P 500

BNP

2016 TOPIX 2016

2018 S&P 500

2016 JPX 400
29

225

500

2014 12

AIFMD

NON-EEA

201609

2016 TOPIX

2016 JPX

BNP

20 2016
2018 11 27

2016 10 14

500

TOPIX

FDI
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2022
2016

225

2018 25
AIF
30
225 2016
2016 225
10
BNP
10
2016 10 24
2021
TOPIX
225



TOPIX
225

TOPIX

500

TOPIX

®@

2016 JPX

IFRS
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225

500 TOPIX
225

TOPIX
225

NAV

IFRS

400

2018 S&P 500

2018 S&P 500
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500

500

225

500

2018 S&P 500
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2022 30

2021

2022 30

2021

b)

a

IFRS IFRS
FDI

(ii)

J.P.

NAV

(iv)
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©
FOI  FOI FDI

FDI

@
FDI

FDI

©)

Q)

@

Q)
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)
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500 2018 S&P 500
(ii)
FDI
@)
@)
(3]
2022 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225
2022 30 2018 S&P 500
Q)
(i) 1AS 32

O)
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15

Q)
Q)
3.

C))

FDI
COVID-19
COVID-19
2016 TOPIX 2022 30

2,330,852
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FDI
23,116,670

2016 225

FDI
22,091,330

2018 S&P 500

FDI
1,107,920

2016 TOPIX
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2,330,852

(19,185)

(19,185)

2022 30

2,252,965

2,252,965

(43,832)

(43,832)

2022 30

108,145
2,602

45

110,792

2021 30

(3,293)

(3,293)




FDI
32,930

2016 225

FDI
175,850,010

2018 S&P 500

FDI

3,540,810
(®)
©
@
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2021 30

17,589,263

17,589,263

(4,262)

(4,262)

2021 30

351,033
2,951

97

354,081
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2022 30 2021 30
- 2016 2016 2018 2016
2022 30 TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
AA- 2,766,777 2,784,460 112,510 77
A 126,352 174,540 698 -
! 2021 29
sep 2016 2016 2018 2016
2021 30 TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
AA- 450,577 17,868,382 358,974 321,432
A 120,523 332,877 1,421 -
! 2021 29

®
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2016 TOPIX
2022 30

19,185
584
10,960
1,404
6,080
7,700
1,264
56,871
21

741

2,900,739

3,005,549

2016 225
2022 30

43,832
438
14,806
9,832
3,263
2,385
4,248
993

2,928,596

3,008,393

2018 S&P 500
2022 30

1,131
33
27

57
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139
73
8
51

112,945

114,464

2016 JPX 400
2022 30

77

77

2021 29

2016 TOPIX
2021 30

3,293
8,640
1,283
11,038
7,573
4,281
565

548,144

584,817

2016 225
2021 30

4,262
2,474
3,733
699
20,550
926

5,110
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4,556
494

18,183,274

18,226,078

2018 S&P 500
2021 30

841
61
65
57

146
61

9
39
1
56

360,121

361,457

2016 JPX 400
2021 30

2,870
16
1,555

336,911

341,352

2021 29

®
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2022 30

2016 TOPIX

2,330,852 - - 2,330,852

2,330,852 - - 2,330,852
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2016 225

2018 S&P 500

2016 TOPIX

2021
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(19,185) - (19,185)
(19,185) - (19,185)
2,252,965 - 2,252,965
2,252,965 - 2,252,965
(43,832) - (43,832)
(43,832) - (43,832)
108,145 - 108,145
2,602 - 2,602

45 - 45

- 101 101

110,792 101 110,893

- (1,131) (1,131)

- (1,131) (1,131)

30

(3,293) - (3,293)
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2016 225

2018 S&P 500
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(3,293) - - (3,293)
17,589,263 - - 17,589,263
17,589,263 - - 17,589,263

(4,262) - - (4,262)

(4,262) - - (4,262)

351,033 - - 351,033

2,951 - - 2,951
97 - - 97
354,081 - - 354,081
- (841) - (841)

- (841) - (841)
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5.
6.
2022 30
2022 30
2016 TOPIX 580,200 (19,185)
2016 225 713,770 (43,832)
2022 30
2018 S&P 500 2,797 45
2022 30
2022 30
2018 S&P 500 101 (1,131)
2021 30
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2021

2021

2021

2021

30
2016 TOPIX
2016 225
30

2018 S&P 500

30

30

2018 S&P 500

2016 TOPIX

2016 225

2018 S&P 500
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547,260 (3,293)

573,993 (4,262)

6,551 97

- (841)

2022 30

(4,468)
5,829
(138,776)

(15,892)

(153,307)

2022 30

1,414,139
(58,337)
(2,133,886)
(39,570)

(817,654)

2022 30
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22,220
(212)
(54,595)
(52)
(32,639)

2016 TOPIX 2021 30

370,991
36,052
432,487

5,422

844,952

2016 225 2021 30

1,900,775
167,877
2,347,248

1,229

4,417,129

2018 S&P 500 2021 30

86,703
2,024
40,368

(396)

128,699
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2016 JPX 400 2021 30
1,162,984
19,473
1,100,217
7,961
2,290,635
! 2021 29
8.
2016 JPX 400
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500
NAV
NAV
NAV
2022 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225
2022 30 2018 S&P 500
2021 2022 30
2016 TOPIX 2022 30
272,972 9,891

1,249,000 -

1,521,972 9,891
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2016 225

2018 S&P 500

2018 S&P 500

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OoooodooodooddoononOonon

2,882,037 18,702
1.89 1.89
2,485,597,430 -
2022 30
294,791 340,223
1,482,400 338,100
(1,776,400) (567,100)
791 111,223
20,957 2,907,639
26.49 26.14
42,589,806,752 9,440,205,541
(50,289,788,810) (16,159,958,891)
2022 30
180,515 527,422
59,900 834,200
(225,500) (852,500)
14,915 509,122
21,038 47,726
1.41 0.09
99,366,155 112,391,461
(363,200,584) (115,361,194)
2022 30
32,008 1,029,267
(12,700) (721,700)
19,308 307,567
16,294 18,601
0.84 0.06
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2021 24

2018 S&P 500

2022 11

2018 S&P 500

2022 26
2021 29
2021 30
S&P 500
2020 2021
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31,362,682 87,709,272
(13,085,075) (62,757,618)
2022 30
39,706 269,998
(29,000) (269,200)
10,706 798
8,599 47
0.80 0.06
37,418,426 21,795,793
(27,400,890) (22,285,224)
2022 30
680 760
680 760
592 48
0.87 0.06
680,015 66,456
2016 JPX 400
336,911,187 20,000 16,845.56
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018

30
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2016 TOPIX 2021 30
4,100,000 12,891
2,972 -
(3,830,000) (3,000)
272,972 9,891
529,004 19,140
1.94 1.94
5,145,008 -
(6,689,417,400) (5,145,750)
2016 225 2021 30
366,000 487,023
365,791 87,000
(437,000) (233,800)
294,791 340,223
8,495,444 9,687,830
28.82 28.47
9,536,729,094 2,491,424 ,040
(10,711,057,590) (6,464,516,434)
2018 S&P 500 2021 30
158,415 1,182,422
725,700 816,000
(703,600) (1,471,000)
180,515 527,422
290,930 69,191
1.61 0.13
984,121,767 98,312,814
(989,194,365) (163,406,583)
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2016 JPX 400

2021

9.
@ O
225
@) 2016 TOPIX
2018 S&P 500
)
2016 TOPIX
NAV 0.07
500
250
NAV 250
0.10
NAV
100,000
©

0.05

(

29

©

)
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2021

789,400

(789,400)

(13,243,999,616)

2016 TOPIX
2018 S&P 500
2016 225
NAV 0.02
. 0.04
2016 225
NAV 250
() NAV 250 500
NAV 0.06 () NAV
NAV 0.05
10,000,000
)
NAV 0.11 (
500
() NAV 500
0.09

117/273

2016

NAV
0.02

500

2018 S&P
NAV

NAV

NAV



2016 TOPIX 11
6,080,217 2021 3
2016 225
9,831,513 2021 3
2018 S&P 500
139,192 2021
2016 JPX 400
2021 30
10.
2016 TOPIX
2021 30
2016 225
2021 30
2018 S&P 500
2021
2016 JPX 400
2021 30
11.
2016 TOPIX 2016 225
() NAV 100
0.07 () NAV 100
NAV 0.06 () NAV
NAV 0.05
NAV 0.04
720,000

2018 S&P 500

118/273
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,355,192 2021 30 12,109,480
0 11,037,674
23,221,097 2021 30 23,925,922
0 20,550,072
338,107 2021 30 474,048
30 145,547
2021 30 13,737,078
2,500
2021 30 140,935
2021 30 140,935
13,407 2021 30 11,745
30
2021 30 140,935
NAV
250
250 500
() NAV 500
() NAV



100
NAV
0.06

100
)

6,780,861

6,261,268

221,752

3,696,368

12.

2016 TOPIX

120,000

2018 S&P 500

17,147,125

275,012
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NAV 0.07 ()
250 NAV
NAV 250 500
NAV 0.05 () NAV 500
NAV 0.04
6,000
2016 TOPIX 8,639,999 2021 30
10,959,739 2021 30 8,639,740

2016 225 11,072,543 2021 30

14,805,553 2021 30 3,733,010
2018 S&P 500 152,753 2021 30

27,476 2021 30 65,164
2016 JPX 400 2021 30
2021 30
2016 225
NAV 0.01
NAV 0.01
1,000
2016 TOPIX 6,926,057 2021 30
7,699,930 2021 30 7,572,772
2016 225 2,632,240 2021 30
3,262,939 2021 30 926,461
2018 S&P 500 303,899 2021 30
72,909 2021 30 60,648

2016 JPX 400 2021 30 5,577,747

2021

30
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13.
225
500 TOPIX
2016 225 NAV 0.02
100,000
2018 S&P 500 NAV 0.01 2016 TOPIX
() NAV 100
NAV 0.00 () NAV 100 500
NAV 0.005 () NAV 500 1000
NAV 0.003 () NAV 1000
3000 NAV 0.002 () NAV 3000
5000 NAV 0.001 ()
NAV 5000 NAV 0.0005
100,000
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 214,140 2021 30 323,557
21,119 2021 30
2016 225 3,110,382 2021 30
3,419,347 4,247,524 2021 30 4,556,142
2018 S&P 500 8,199 2021 30 6,856
2021 30 719
2016 JPX 400 2021 30 1,616,657
2021 30
14.

11
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2022 30
2016 2016 2018
TOPIX 225 S&P 500
2021 - - 1,889
2021 - 39,754 -
2021 11 - 24,385 -
2022 - 33,881 798
2022 - 55,595 82
- 153,615 2,769
2021 30
2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 X 400

2020 - - 2,489 -
2020 50,985 46,231 - 97,630
2020 11 113 55,853 - -
2021 13,886 10,265 994 48,122
2021 - 38,776 - -

64,984 151,125 3,483 145,752
! 2021 29
15.

74
50
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16.

IAS 24

17.

2021

30
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J.P.

10



18.
2016 JPX 400
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500

19.

20.

2022 30

2021

2022

30
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2021 24
2022 11
2022 26
/
2022 12
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2016 225
2022 30
76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)
76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)
0.42% (2021 30 0.48%)
3,000 Dentsu Group Inc 12,225 0.42
12,225 0.42
0.06% (2021 30 0.06%)

300 IHl Corp 1,089 0.04
300 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd 763 0.02
1,852 0.06

0.24% (2021 30 0.25%)
3,000 Japan Tobacco Inc 7,038 0.24
7,038 0.24

0.03% (2021 30 0.03%)
300 ANA Holdings Inc 750 0.03
750 0.03

2.66% (2021 30 3.17%)
3,000 Hino Motors Ltd 2,091 0.07
6,000 Honda Motor Co Ltd 19,758 0.67
1,500 Isuzu Motors Ltd 2,251 0.08
600 Mazda Motor Corp 666 0.02
300 Mitsubishi Motors Corp 138 0.00
3,000 Nissan Motor Co Ltd 1,585 0.05
3,000 Subaru Corp 7,234 0.25
3,000 Suzuki Motor Corp 12,792 0.44
15,000 Toyota Motor Corp 31,500 1.08
78,015 2.66
1.79% (2021 30 2._35%)

3,000 Bridgestone Corp 14,850 0.51
3,000 Denso Corp 21,624 0.74
3,000 JTEKT Corp 3,060 0.11
3,000 NGK Insulators Ltd 5,484 0.19
3,000 Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd 4,497 0.15
1,500 Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd 2,755 0.09
52,270 1.79

0.46% (2021 30 0.51%)
300 Aozora Bank Ltd 791 0.03
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76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )

76.93% (2021 30  96.73%)( )
0.46% (2021 30 0.51%)( )

3,000 Chiba Bank Ltd 2,223 0.08

3,000 Concordia Financial Group Ltd 1,410 0.05
600 Fukuoka Financial Group Inc 1,466 0.05

3,000 Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group Inc 2,188 0.07
300 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 463 0.02
300 Resona Holdings Inc 153 0.00

3,000 Shizuoka Bank Ltd 2,445 0.08
300 Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc 1,210 0.04
300 Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 1,254 0.04

13,603 0.46
0.84% (2021 30 1.11%)

3,000 Asahi Group Holdings Ltd 13,335 0.46

3,000 Kirin Holdings Co Ltd 6,412 0.22
600 Sapporo Holdings Ltd 1,806 0.06

3,000 Takara Holdings Inc 3,015 0.10

24,568 0.84
2.61% (2021 30 3.04%)
600 AGC Inc 2,862 0.10

3,000 Daikin Industries Ltd 65,250 2.23
300 Nippon Sheet Glass Co Ltd 115 0.00
300 Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co Ltd 1,009 0.03
300 Taiheiyo Cement Corp 608 0.02

1,500 TOTO Ltd 6,720 0.23

76,564 2.61
3.92% (2021 30 5.04%)

3,000 Asahi Kasei Corp 3,108 0.11
600 Denka Co Ltd 1,971 0.07
300 DIC Corp 722 0.02

3,000 Kuraray Co Ltd 3,285 0.11

1,500 Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp 1,105 0.04
600 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 1,734 0.06

3,000 Nissan Chemical Corp 18,750 0.64

3,000 Nitto Denko Corp 26,340 0.90

3,000 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd 45,900 1.57
300 Showa Denko KK 692 0.02
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76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
3.92% (2021 30 5.04%) ( )
3,000 Sumitomo Chemical Co Ltd 1,593 0.05
3,000 Tokai Carbon Co Ltd 3,102 0.11
600 Tokuyama Corp 1,036 0.03
3,000 Toray Industries Inc 2,284 0.08
1,500 Tosoh Corp 2,527 0.09
300 UBE Corp 605 0.02
114,754 3.92
2.35% (2021 30 3.26%)
1,500 Dai Nippon Printing Co Ltd 4,389 0.15
9,000 Recruit Holdings Co Ltd 35,955 1.23
3,000 Secom Co Ltd 25,149 0.86
1,500 Toppan Printing Co Ltd 3,400 0.11
68,893 2.35
1.19% (2021 30 1.37%)
300 Fujitsu Ltd 5,089 0.17
300 NEC Corp 1,581 0.06
15,000 NTT Data Corp 28,140 0.96
34,810 1.19
1.12% (2021 30 1.82%)
3,000 Kao Corp 16,416 0.56
3,000 Shiseido Co Ltd 16,338 0.56
32,754 1.12
1.88% (2021 30 1.99%)
3,000 ITOCHU Corp 11,001 0.38
3,000 Marubeni Corp 3,672 0.12
3,000 Mitsubishi Corp 12,111 0.41
3,000 Mitsui & Co Ltd 8,984 0.31
260 Sojitz Corp 499 0.02
3,000 Sumitomo Corp 5,571 0.19
3,000 Toyota Tsusho Corp 13,290 0.45
55,128 1.88
0.79% (2021 30 0.70%)

3,000 Credit Saison Co Ltd 4,677 0.16
3,000 Daiwa Securities Group Inc 1,818 0.06
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3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000

300
300
300

3,000
3,000
300
600

3,000
6,000
3,000
2,400

900

600
3,000
9,000
3,000

3,000
3,000
1,500
3,000

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
0.79% (2021 30 0.70%)( )
Japan Exchange Group Inc 5,874 0.20
Matsui Securities Co Ltd 2,415 0.08
Nomura Holdings Inc 1,488 0.05
ORIX Corp 6,828 0.24
23,100 0.79
0.03% (2021 30 0.03%)
Chubu Electric Power Co Inc 410 0.01
Kansai Electric Power Co Inc 403 0.01
Tokyo Electric Power Co Holdings Inc 170 0.01
983 0.03
0.27% (2021 30 0-39%)
Casio Computer Co Ltd 3,777 0.13
Fujikura Ltd 2,307 0.08
Furukawa Electric Co Ltd 668 0.02
GS Yuasa Corp 1,274 0.04
8,026 0.27
4.73% (2021 30 5.02%)
Alps Alpine Co Ltd 4,131 0.14
Kyocera Corp 43,536 1.49
MINEBEA MITSUMI Inc 6,930 0.24
Murata Manufacturing Co Ltd 17,751 0.60
Nippon Electric Glass Co Ltd 2,337 0.08
SCREEN Holdings Co Ltd 5,502 0.19
Taiyo Yuden Co Ltd 13,830 0.47
TDK Corp 37,710 1.29
Yokogawa Electric Corp 6,723 0.23
138,450 4.73
0.79% (2021 30 0.88%)
COMSYS Holdings Corp 7,758 0.26
JGC Holdings Corp 5,262 0.18
Kajima Corp 2,336 0.08
Obayashi Corp 2,955 0.10
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3,000
600

300

600

3,000
3,000
3,000

300

600
1,500
1,500
3,000
3,000
3,000

300
3,000

600
600

3,000
600

76.93% (2021 30
76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)(
0.79% (2021

Shimizu Corp

Taisei Corp

0.05% (2021 30
Toho Co Ltd

0.06%)

0.02% (2021 30

Hitachi Zosen Corp

0.02%)

2.58% (2021 30
Aeon Co Ltd

2.76%)

Ajinomoto Co Inc
Kikkoman Corp

Maruha Nichiro Corp
MEIJI Holdings Co Ltd

NH Foods Ltd

Nichirei Corp

Nippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd
Nisshin Seifun Group Inc

Seven & i Holdings Co Ltd

0.07% (2021 30
Nippon Paper Industries Co Ltd
0ji Holdings Corp

0.11% (2021 30 0.10%)
Osaka Gas Co Ltd
Tokyo Gas Co Ltd
0.22% (2021 30

Amada Co Ltd
Fuji Electric Co Ltd

96.73%)

)

30 0.88%)( )

0.09%)

0.26%)
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2,250 0.08
2,535 0.09
23,096 0.79
1,472 0.05
1,472 0.05
512 0.02
512 0.02
7,062 0.24
9,900 0.34
21,600 0.74
766 0.02
3,996 0.14
6,367 0.22
3,539 0.12
1,719 0.06
4,764 0.16
15,801 0.54
75,514 2.58
289 0.01
1,764 0.06
2,053 0.07
1,558 0.05
1,684 0.06
3,242 0.11
2,991 0.10
3,372 0.12
6,363 0.22
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76.93% (2021 30 96.73%) ( )

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )

2.79% (2021 30 3.25%)
12,000 Olympus Corp 32,718 1.12
12,000 Terumo Corp 49,056 1.67
81,774 2.79

0.60% (2021 30 0.72%)
3,000 Daiwa House Industry Co Ltd 9,486 0.33
600 Haseko Corp 953 0.03
3,000 Sekisui House Ltd 7,130 0.24
17,569 0.60
1.36% (2021 30 1.69%)
3,000 Panasonic Holdings Corp 3,289 0.11
3,000 Sharp Corp 3,147 0.11
3,000 Sony Group Corp 33,285 1.14
39,721 1.36
0.81% (2021 30 0.72%)

300 Dai-ichi Life Holdings Inc 753 0.03
3,000 Japan Post Holdings Co Ltd 2,907 0.10
900 MS&AD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 3,742 0.13
600 Sompo Holdings Inc 3,590 0.12
600 T&D Holdings Inc 974 0.03
1,500 Tokio Marine Holdings Inc 11,855 0.40
23,821 0.81

1.83% (2021 30 3.47T%h)
2,400 CyberAgent Inc 3,242 0.11
7,200 M3 Inc 28,066 0.96
3,000 Rakuten Group Inc 1,836 0.06
3,000 Trend Micro Inc 19,860 0.68
1,200 Z Holdings Corp 476 0.02
53,480 1.83

0.10% (2021 30 0.12%)

600 Japan Steel Works Ltd 1,769 0.06
300 JFE Holdings Inc 429 0.01
300 Kobe Steel Ltd 185 0.01
300 Nippon Steel Corp 570 0.02
2,953 0.10
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76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
0.83% (2021 30 1.10%)
3,000 Yamaha Corp 16,800 0.57
3,000 Yamaha Motor Co Ltd 7,458 0.26
24,258 0.83
4.28% (2021 30 5.57%)
600 Ebara Corp 3,048 0.10
3,000 FANUC Corp 63,720 2.18
300 Keyence Corp 13,914 0.47
3,000 Kubota Corp 6,081 0.21
600 OKUMA Corp 3,048 0.10
3,000 Omron Corp 20,673 0.71
600 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 1,797 0.06
3,000 Yaskawa Electric Corp 13,110 0.45
125,391 4.28
0.95% (2021 30 1.13%)
3,000 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd 9,015 0.31
600 Hitachi Ltd 3,863 0.13
3,000 Komatsu Ltd 9,024 0.31
3,000 Mitsubishi Electric Corp 4,353 0.15
300 Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd 1,423 0.05
27,678 0.95
0.00% (2021 30 0.00%)
0.12% (2021 30 0.17%)
3,000 NSK Ltd 2,190 0.07
3,000 NTN Corp 7 0.03
300 Toho Zinc Co Ltd 644 0.02
3,611 0.12
0.40% (2021 30 0.47%)
600 Dowa Holdings Co Ltd 2,703 0.09
300 Mitsubishi Materials Corp 583 0.02
300 Mitsui Mining & Smelting Co Ltd 951 0.03
300 Nippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 448 0.02
300 Pacific Metals Co Ltd 707 0.02
1,500 Sumitomo Metal Mining Co Ltd 6,375 0.22
11,767 0.40
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76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
0.17% (2021 30 0.16%)
3,000 Nikon Corp 4,707 0.16
300 Toyobo Co Ltd 301 0.01
5,008 0.17
1.77% (2021 30 2_15%)
4,500 Canon 1Inc 13,882 0.47
3,000 FUJIFILM Holdings Corp 21,834 0.75
3,000 Konica Minolta Inc 1,359 0.05
3,000 Ricoh Co Ltd 3,183 0.11
6,000 Seiko Epson Corp 11,520 0.39
51,778 1.77
0.25% (2021 30 0.23%)
3,000 ENEOS Holdings Inc 1,541 0.05
1,200 Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd 3,924 0.14
1,200 Inpex Corp 1,764 0.06
7,229 0.25
0.00% (2021 30 0.18%)
5.80% (2021 30 7.43%)

15,000 Astellas Pharma Inc 31,725 1.08
9,000 Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 31,230 1.07
9,000 Daiichi Sankyo Co Ltd 30,933 1.06
3,000 Eisai Co Ltd 17,175 0.59
3,000 Kyowa Kirin Co Ltd 9,150 0.31
3,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Ltd 14,454 0.49
3,000 Shionogi & Co Ltd 20,565 0.70
3,000 Sumitomo Pharma Co Ltd 3,273 0.11
3,000 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 11,454 0.39

169,959 5.80

1.04% (2021 30 1.19%)

3,000 Mitsubishi Estate Co Ltd 5,907 0.20
3,000 Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd 8,752 0.30
3,000 Sumitomo Realty & Development Co Ltd 10,749 0.37
1,500 Tokyo Tatemono Co Ltd 2,804 0.10
3,000 Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp 2,142 0.07

30,354 1.04
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3,000
3,000
3,000
1,500
3,000
1,500

6,000
300
3,000

300

900
3,000
6,000

18,000
1,200
300
3,000
18,000

600
300

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)(
76.93% (2021 30  96.73%)( )
7.82% (2021 30  11.01%)

Citizen Watch Co Ltd

Fast Retailing Co Ltd

Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings Ltd
J Front Retailing Co Ltd

Marui Group Co Ltd
Takashimaya Co Ltd

6.04% (2021 30 8.27%)
Advantest Corp
SUMCO Corp
Tokyo Electron Ltd

0.00% (2021 30 0.01%)
Mitsui E&S Holdings Co Ltd

1.40% (2021 30 1.49%)
DeNA Co Ltd
Konami Holdings Corp
Nexon Co Ltd

6.18% (2021 30 8.49%)
KDDI Corp
Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp
Oki Electric Industry Co Ltd
SoftBank Corp
SoftBank Group Corp

0.03% (2021 30  0.05%)

Teijin Ltd
Unitika Ltd
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1,656 0.06
213,240 7.28
3,300 0.11
1,740 0.06
7,125 0.24
1,995 0.07
229,056 7.82
43,560 1.48
528 0.02
132,900 4.54
176,988 6.04
101 0.00

101 0.00
1,700 0.06
22,530 0.77
16,668 0.57
40,898 1.40
77,202 2.64
4,675 0.16
222 0.01
4,520 0.15
94,230 3.22
180,849 6.18
848 0.03

69 0.00

917 0.03



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%) ( )

76.93% (2021 30 96.73%)( )
1.58% (2021 30 0.93%)
3,000 Bandai Namco Holdings Inc 28,737 0.98
300 Nintendo Co Ltd 17,604 0.60
46,341 1.58
1.55% (2021 30 1.94%)
300 Central Japan Railway Co 4,697 0.16
300 East Japan Railway Co 2,081 0.07
300 Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Ltd 2,475 0.08
600 Keio Corp 2,913 0.10
1,500 Keisei Electric Railway Co Ltd 5,610 0.19
1,500 Mitsubishi Logistics Corp 4,867 0.17
900 Mitsui OSK Lines Ltd 2,795 0.10
300 NIPPON EXPRESS HOLDINGS INC 2,211 0.08
300 Nippon Yusen KK 2,781 0.10
1,500 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 2,738 0.09
600 Tobu Railway Co Ltd 1,857 0.06
1,500 Tokyu Corp 2,397 0.08
300 West Japan Railway Co 1,497 0.05
3,000 Yamato Holdings Co Ltd 6,510 0.22
45,429 1.55
2,252,965 76.93
2,252,965 76.93
* 1.50 % 2021 30 (0.02)%

24 28,121 Nikkei 225 (OSE) Futures September 2022 (41,888) (1.43)

14 27,764 Nikkei 225 Mini Futures September 2022 (1,944) (0.07)

(43,832) (1-50)

(43,832) (1.50)

(43,832) (1.50)

2,209,133 75.43

575,327 19.65

174,540 5.96

(30,404) (1.04)

2,928,596 100.00
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A ot 10 June XX
Saris 2006 TOP Fund  Series 2018 Nikkai 225 Fund Sering POLE SEF 500 Fund
B0 june MR T 3 une P02 30 Juma 3037
Mctes Y000 il USD'030
Aty
Fnancisl aset @ fair vabae 18 reugh grofit or ks 54 2,130,352 1,153 g5 110,803
Dhsdends recelvable A ZBEL 114
Astaurks dus fram hroken 0235 - -
Cash and cash eguivalems LLE RSl L% o) 2.MB
arsh gt brokers 126,351 178,543 [T
Managament lee rebate recevable 27.90% - -
Other receiva bls 1,266 - 27 11
Total Assets 3,005,585 100,383 114,464
Liadilities
Fingncisl lishittes o fair value through profit or loss 24 |19, 1E5) |43,832) SN E]
Pasyabla dor investmeacs punchaged 56,871} - -
Maragement fees payable ] [oRiT 9,B32] (133
Withhokding 1an parpsble |52q] fAE] |5}
Cusoodian fees payable i 7, 700| (3,363 173
Adminisiration fees payahls 1 |12, 20| | 14806 1271
Lizinse leis payabls 13 [r31] [4,346] =
Legal and professional fees pavable 3,284 [2.385) -]
Au it ees payalile (3,409| - 1571
Other payadics R (a1 (593) 58]
Tetal Liahiktien [104,E80] {m,7a7) )
Met assets hile ta pating
unigholders 7,300,713 % !.'IL'H_'E_

The finpncial stabements were spproved sgd authorised for | ssee by the Trustee and th Dirsston of the Mansger cn Qecember 2032

L e = ] —

Iabartruit Eorporats Sarveas Wryman] Urmibed 93 Tnastee 1P Mnrgan Mansart Mansgerment Limitad o Mamager
brping Kmeak ! Franzine enrniegs, dushoricss] Sigrlovies Erecuhive. Do
At Demplen e

Tl SRS B vy g s 36 0 Wi | e O hai |I|III|.:l l;.llr!l'r'l-h

PassIM Trist
STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION [continued)
As gt 30 Jine 2022
Serles 2016 WY — Nildoed
400 Fund®
30 June 2022
JF 000
Assots
Cash and cash equivalents "
Tortall Assets ks
Liabilitles
Legall and professional fees payable [EE) ]
Tortal Liabilities (77
Total Equity .
Mt Sub-Furd cossind operatians: an 29 June 2081,
Tha sccompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are-cel sisbements.
11
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PassIM Triist
STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION [continued)
A gt 30 Jine 2021
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund  Serbes 2016 Nilidoed 225 Fund Series 2008 SEP 500 Fund
30 June 2021 30 hune 2021 30 June 2001
Nirbes JFV000 JEY000 usD'00a
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 34 . 17,5858 63 354 081
Dividends receivable . 16157 12
Cash and cash equivalents 453,570 283381 5,734
Cash at brokers 1200533 332877 1421
hianagement fee rebate receivable B 212 . .
Other receivables 3,612 4,400 4
Tortall Assets. 584,817 18,226,078 361,457
Liabilitles
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 34 [3,293) (4,262 {841)
Fayable for imvestments purchased . . {39)
Management fees payable 4 [11,038) 20,550 {148)
Withholding tax payable . [2.474) {B1)
Custodian fees payable 12 [7.573) [ F L] {E1)
Administration fees payable 11 [4,/640) (3,733) {E5)
License fees payable 13 . (4,558) 1)
Legal and professional fees payable [4.281) (5,110 1%
At foes payabile i1,283) a5 57)
Other payables i565)
Total Liabilities [36,673) 42,804) i1,338)
Met assets attributable to redessming participating
wnitholders 548,144 18,183,374 360,121
Tha sccompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are-cel sisbements.
12

PassiM Trust
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
As ot 30 June 2021
Series 2006 WX — Nildoed
400 Fund®
30 June 2021
JF 000
Aszets
Dividends receivable 19,900
Cash and cash equivalents an4gm
Total Assets. 341,352
Liabilities
Fayable for units redesmed {336,911)
‘Withholding tax payable: (2470
Legall and professional fees payable [1,558)
At fees payable 18]
Total Liabilities (341,352
Total Equity .

“Tha Sub-Fund cesard operatiors on 29 June 2051,

Tha scompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are=cel sisbaninte.
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Far the financial year from 1 july 2021 to 30 June 2022

Series 2006 TOPIX Series 2006 MNikkel Series 2008 SEP
Fund 225 Fund 500 Fund
30 Jurme 2022 30 Juna 3022 30 June 2007
Nates JFvoon APY000 usp'ood
Income:
Mot (loss) on finandal assets and liabilities at fair value throwugh
profit or loss E {153,307 (817 654) (32,B34)
Dividend income 37400 18472 1537
Cither income 21,087 ' ]
Tortal net investment (ksz) {o4,810) fssgaEr)  [x9,004)
Expenses
Insestment Management fpes 9 {11,355) {23,211} [EEL]]
Custodian fees 12 {B.928) 2,552} 1304)
Adrministration fees 11 {2 880y {11,073} {153)
Legal and professional fees {2567) {2,547} {24)
Audt fees (758) {758} fa7)
License fees 13 [214) 13,110} %)
Trustes fees 10 - . {13)
Other expenses {2 006) {5,35) {130}
Tortal aperating expenses (32,466 [48,586) (1,007)
Finance cost:
Distribution o Unitholders 14 - (153,615} i2,765)
fLoss) before tax (127,276) (801, 423) (2,30
Mishhalding tax (5,726) (33,488] toes)
Mt |dexcrease) for the financial year in net assets attribatable to
Unithodders from operations [REEN: K] (B34,547F) [33,875]

Theere are no gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statemsent of Comprehensive Income and accordingly no statement of total
recognised gains and losses has been presented.

All results are from continuing operations with the exception of Serkes 2008 JFX - Mikked 400 Fund which ceased operations on 29 June 2021

The scnmpanying nobes are an integral part of thess frescel stsbements.
14
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
Far the finandial year fram 1 lidy 2021 to 30 June 2022

Total net investment Income
Expenses

Tortal operating eapsnses
Mt increase for the finandal year In net assets attributable to
Unitholders from operations

e Sub-Furd cossrd ozeratiara an 29 June 2081,

Serles 2006 PH—
Mikkel 400 Fund®
30 Jurme 2022

Theere are no gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive income and accordingly no staterment of total

recognised gains and losses has been presented.

All results are from continuing operations with the soception of Serbes 2006 1FX « Milded 400 Fund which ceased operations on 29 June 2001

Tha sccompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are-cel sisbements.

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [continued)
Far the financial year fram 1 judy 2020 to 30 june 2021

Series 2006 TOPIX Series 2006 MNikkel Serles 2008 SEP
Fund 225 Fund 500 Fund
30 Jume 2021 30 June 2021 30 June 2021
Niobes JFvoon APF000 Usp'ooa
Income:
Mot gain on financial assets and liabilties at fair value through
profit or loss 7 44,957 4,417,129 128 659
Dividend income 44,9490 a5 5427
Interest incoms - . 2
Cither income 15 454 2
Tortall net investment income 205,438 4,556 699 134,550
Expenses
Insestment Management fpes 9 {12,108 {23,506) 474)
Custodian fees 12 - {17,147} 1278)
Administration fees 11 {8,781} B, 261} {222
Legal and professional fees {2967} |2, 220) {26)
Set up foes . ' 18]
duckt fees [718) {18 178)
License fees 13 [E24) 13,419} 7
Trustes fees w0 [141) {141} {1
Other expenses {1332y |2, 206) |188)
Total operating expenses {24373 f57,318) i1,290)
Finance cost:
Distribution to Unitholders 14 (&4 984} (151,138} (3,483)
Prafit before tax 216,081 4,428 256 129,777
Withholding tax | S50y {42,715} i1,B62)
Mt increase for the finendal year In net assets attributable to
Unithobders from o perations. 209,191 4445541 128108

Tha scompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are=cel sisbaninte.
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [continued)
Far the financial year fram 1 july 2020 to 30 June 2021

Theere are no gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive income and accordingly no statement of total
recognised gains and losses has been presented.

All results are from continuing operations with the esxception of Serbes 2008 1P « Milded 400 Fund which ceased operations on 29 June 2021

The scompanying nobes are an integral part aof thess fnesciel stsbemenis
17
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENEIVE INCOME [continued)
Far the financial pear fram 1 lidy 2020 to 30 Jure 2021

Serles 2006 K —
Mikkel 200 Fund®
30 Jume 2021
Niobes JFoon
Income:
Met gain on financial assets and labilties at fair value theough
profit ar loss 7 Pl 150
Dividend income 188,913
Total net investmient Income 2 479,548
Expenses
Investment Management fees 5 {13,739
Custodian fees 12 {5,578)
Administration fees 11 {3,896)
Legal and professional fees 13,1309
Audit fees (520
License fees 13 (1517}
Trustes fees w0 [141)
Other expenses {1576)
Prafit before tax 2449503
Withholding tax {22.751)
Bt increase for the finandal year In net assets attributable to
Unitholders from o perations: 2 A0, 752

ha Sub-Fund cessed ozeration on 29 June 3001

Theere are no gains or losses in the financial year other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive income and accordingly no statement of total
recognised gains and losses has been presented.

All results are from continuing operations with the esxception of Serbes 2008 1P « Milded 400 Fund which ceased operations on 29 June 2021

Tha sccompanying nobes are an integral part of thess frescel stsbemenis

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS
Far the financial year fram 1y 2021 to 30 june 2022

Series 2006 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel Series 2018 SEP
Fund 25 Fund 500 Fund
30 Jure 2022 30 bune 2022 30 June 2022
JF00n P00 Uspiood
Mt assets attributable to redeeming particlpating unitholders at
beginning of the firandcal year 548,144 18,183,374 3e0,121
Subscription of redeemable participating units 2,485 557 52,000,012 350,790
Fedemption of redesmable participating units . (66 440 T48] 0,000
Mot increase,{decrease] resulting from unit transactions 1 485 557 (14,415 736} [213,301)
Mot (decrease) for the financial year in net assets attributable to
Unitholders from operations {133,002} (434 sa¥) (33,87
Mt assets attributable to redessming participating Unitholders at
end of the financial year 2,900,739 2,928,598 112945

Tha scompanying nobes are an imtegral part of thess freecel stsbaneni
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS {continued)
Far the financial year fram 1 july 2020 to 30 June 2021

Series 2006 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel Series 2008 S&P
Fund 25 Fund 500 Fund
a0 Jure 2021 30 Junae 2021 30 June 2021
JE00n IPFD00 Usplood
Mt assets attributable to redessming particlpating unitholders at
beginning of the firancal year E428371 18,285 154 302,178
Subscription of redeemable participating units 5145 12,008,153 1,082 435
Bedemption of redeermable participating units 6,554 553} (17,178 E74) {1,153 BO0)
Mot decrease resulting from unit transactions |B.BE9,418) (5,147 421} 70, 166)
Met increase for the finandal year in net assets atiributable fo
Unitholders from operations &09,150 4,445 541 132109
Mt assets attributable to redessning participating Unitholders at
end of the financial year 548,144 18183374 360,121

The scompanying nobes are an integral part aof thess fnesciel stsbemenis
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY
Far the financial pear fram 1 lidy 2020 to 30 Jure 2021

Serles 2006 PH—

Mikkel 400 Fund®
30 Jure 2021
Nates JFoon
Tertal equity at beginning of the financial year 10,968,999
Subscription of redesmable participating units -
Fedemption of redesmable participating units (13,243 999}
Met decrease resulting from unit transactions {13,243 gy
Distribution to Unitholders 14 {145,752}
Met increase for the finandal year in net assets atiributable fo
Unitholders from operations T A0S
Total equity at end of the finandal year .
e Sub-Furd cossrd ozeratiara an 29 June 2081,
Tha sccompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are-cel sisbements.
1
Passii Trust
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year fram 1 iy 2021 to 30 june 2022
Serkes 2016 TOPIX Series 2006 Mildosd Series 2018 SEP
Fund 225 Fund 500 Fund
30 bune 2022 30 June 2002 30 June 2022
APFD0D o] usDono
Caith Miesns frem operating actidiles
Min dacriase bor thie Snancial vaar in el et atiribarable @
Unithaldars rom opemations [133,003) {B34,942) [33,575)
Adpstmens lor:
Ditribution paid bs Unithldens s 153 615 -
Dirsidand incame {37, 400) (212,472) [3.537)
Wfimhibaslillig ta o dbibiand IREaime 576 334589 5
prating fles] Bates warking cupitsl changes [464,676] feesze) _ pases)
[ncreasel/dicrease in Seancial et ot [ salue thicd gh prof o ks (2,330,353 15,336,208 43,153
Incraas n Tnascal Rab@itie: st Tal salue through prefin o loss 15382 ] o]
0 il In {79,000 1,700 T+
I i T rease) in payabiis 52,345 577 {107}
[ncrease)/decrease in cash at broker (5,329) 158,357 113
Pt s (il i) prewidid by opuratisas [1512,220] 14,666,988 a8
Tasation patd 5725 23,459 1995}
Dirvitinds recaived 33580 231 768 3,635
Pt g (s i) e by opurating actitias . ramasn 14,865,397 23,084
[ Byt ] Bisancing activitl
Proceads from ption of frdeamabie panicgating unis 1,485,507 53,030,013 90, 90
Papiriets from redemption of redeemable panicipating weits - (66,849, 743) (504,051}
Ditstribution paid o Unitheldirs - 1153,615) [2.7E8)
it ot inflowg|outflew) from Naamdng acthities L ARE 85T [14,573,353) (L6 AT0)
Rt changi in il and cash sguivalins 1.0 201 946 FE- ]
Carth et Cal egpuivalents ail tha Baginning of th finaecial year 453,370 263,361 5734
Ciush and eash spsivalants &t the end of thet lTnascial yeas 485140 575,337 3748

Tha scompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are=cel sisbaninte.
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PassiM Trust

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS [continued)
Far the financial year from 1 july 2021 to 30 June 2022

Series 2006 1PK — Mikkel

400 Fund®
30 June 2022
IFFO00
Carkh flews frems operating activities
Mt Bcrease fof the feandial yaar in nel die s stiribues sl to -
unithokiars from eperation
Adpsstments lor:
Oprating guis belore werking capital changes
o in payati for Lnts redesmed [336.911)
Duiicrindsge i aiyabbs & 364)
Mt ol (e i) egsrations [341,275)
Diidangh ricdived 19,900
M caifs (e d i) egsrating wthities [321,355]
Rt chagi in cadl and cash aguivalints [321,355]
Carl ated cack pgpuivabin s a tha Baginning of thi finsscial year 371,432
Caih and cash spaivalonts ot the sl of the Mnamsial year 77

Hth Sub-Furd cosaed operatiara: on 29 June 2081,

The scnmpanying nobes are an integral part of thess frescel stsbements.
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS [continued)
Far the financial pear fram 1 lidy 2020 to 30 Jure 2021

Series 2018 TOPEK Series 2016 Nikdoed Series 2008 S&P
Fund 275 Fund 500 Fund
30 June 2021 30 June 2021 30 Jume 2021
g g i WPY000 ushong
Cash Mews frem operating acthities
Mt icraise for the Beancial yaar in nat sssats stiibatabls 1o
Unithaldars lram opertians 208,191 4445541 138,108
Adpstmens Tor
Distribution paid o Linithelders 64,984 154,175 3,483
Ditvidiand Incame e4,907) j1ma.sT [5.827)
Intarast income . . vl
withitedding tas oe dhidand income 6490 41718 1,668
prating guis befors werking cipital changis 836,073 4358811 1743
Ducrisase|iecraasa) i nancial assels &2 Gir valus through peofitor los B9 518 972,180 (80,321}
(Dot e i nancial Babslitiees w1 Tadv value thavugh profit or [5,422) (4,218 160
[
Decreasa|incruasa) i recetai 2,198 (e 5
Becsuisa in payabies {23.205) (23,626) 1299}
Ducrease|bcraasa) i cash @t brokar 3,340 {167,877} 1000
N e proidied by eserations 071 5426430 71,880
Tasation patd i5.290) #2,7m5) L858
Dirvidianch rectivad 54,901 200,363 00
Intarast income . b
Mt cas prowidied by ssarating activitis TASE T4 5,376,077 72,314
s Mo wad s Bnancing e ivities
Pricats from subscrigtion of nedremable panicealing unis 5,145 13,028,153 1,082,435
Payiets from redemption of reseemabli panicipating weit 5,604,563] (17,175,574 [1,152,600)
Bistribution pasd te Uiitholdirs {64984] {151,15) @423
Pt casis oubllow from flnancing activities 16,754,403 5,258, 545] {73,648}
et chisge in cash and cash squivalents 304,340 77,531 [1.335)
Cath e caihh espsivalents an tha Baginning of the finsedal yaas 140,530 205,850 7,089
Cash and cash sgavalants ot tha snd of the fnascial year 453,870 183,381 5,734

Tha sccompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are-cel sisbements.

PassIM Trust

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS [continued)
Far the financial year fram 1 judy 2020 to 30 june 2021

Series 2018 1P — Nikkel

400 Fund*
30 bune 3021
1P o00
Caith Miesns lrem operating actidiles
Mit imcrease o the feandial year in nel et eTriboralle v 1430,752
unitholkdars fram oparations
Adpsstments for:
Diraidand incoime [L18E.915)
Wfimhaleling L o dividend income 28,751
Operating guin before werking capital changes IR
Diriasa in financial assets at fair vaboe threugh prolitof ks 10,733,056
Dcriasa in linancial abilais ab i valos thraugh peolit of los {7.961)
Dicrinase in necehables
InEraaid i papablic
Dacrirasa in cash at Broker
el it prowided by eeerations
Tasation paid
Dbty ricdived

et cas prowited by scarating activities

10544
304 655
—_— e
PR
[28,751)
I
. 13554T8
Cash fews e in Bnancing aahitis
Paymants from redemption of units from sguity helders [15,243,999]
Distribistinn paid o Linitheldis [145,752)
Hiiet eails cutllow from financing aetivities {18,388 751]
164,567
S
—_— e
5

Rt chasgi in codls and cash sgivalints

Cailh e cailh gpivalents an tha Baginning of the finsedal yaar
Cakh and cash sysvalants 5t tha nd of the fnamelal year

“Tha Sub-Furd cesasd operations on 29 June 2001,

Tha scompanying nobes are an integral part of thess Are=cel sisbaninte.
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Pazsli Trust (the “Trust”), is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the laws of the Cayman
lslands pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended and restated pursuant to an
Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated 25 July 2018 {the “Trust Deed”).

For the purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a Non-European Economic Area ("NOMN-EEA") AIF
with a European Economic Area ("EEA™) AIFM. The distribution of this trust is restricted to lapanese
investors only.

The Trust has been established as an umbrella fund and accordingly the assets of the Trust are separated
into different sub-funds (together, the “Sub-Funds™). As at 30 June 2022, the Trust holds 13 active
Sub-Funds; Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund, China 2x Bull
Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund,
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2X Bull
Fund and US Technology 2X Bear Fund.

For the Sub-Funds Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Serfes 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund, Serfes 2018 S&P 500 Fund and
Series 2016 JPX - Nikkel 400 Fund for which this Annual Repert and Audited Financial Statements have
been prepared, the Sub-Fund administrators are State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and State
Street Cayman Trust Company Limited. The Sub-Fund custodians are State Street Custodial Services
{Ireland) Limited and State Street Bank and Trust Company. For the remaining 10 active Sub-Funds, the
Sub-Fund administrators are BNP Paribas Securities Services and BNP Paribas Fund Administration
Services (Ireland) Limited and the Sub-Fund custodian i BMP Paribas Securities Services. A separate
Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements have been prepared for these 10 Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund commenced its operations from 20 September 2016, Serfes 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
commenced itz operations from 24 October 2016 and Serles 2018 58P 500 Fund commenced its
operations froam 27 November 2018,

Serles 2016 IPX — Nikkal 400 Fund commenced its operations in 14 October 2016, The Sub-Fund
terminated itz operations on 29 June 2021,

The Sub-Funds invest in Index Securities (as defined in the Supplements of the Sub-Funds) hawving
significantly the same weightings as those of the Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index and
Financial Derivative Instruments ["FDI"), including, but not limited to, futures for tracking the
performance of the Nikkel 225 Index, SEP 500 Index and TOPIX Index and for the purpose of efficient
portiolio management, including equitisation of cash exposures.

26
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. General Information (continued)

The Sub-Funds operate principally az index tracking funds and as such, the adverse performance of an
Index Security will not ordinarily result in the elimination of that Index Security from the Sub-Funds'
portfolios. The Sub-Funds may not be invested in all the Index Securities of the Nikkel 225 Index, S&P
500 Index and TOPIX Index at all times due to varfous factors such as, but not limited to, the passive
investment strategy of the Sub-Funds and changes to the composition of the Nikkei 225 Index, S&P
500 Index and TOPIX Index. For example, when an Index Security ceases to be a constituent of the Nikkel
225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index, Mikko Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Investment Manager”)
may rebalance the Sub-Funds" portfolio by selling the outgoing Index Security and using the proceeds to
invest in a replacement Index Security, which will reflect the replacement constituent of the Nikkei
225 Index, SEP 500 Index and TOPIX Index. However, the Sub-Funds' portfelle may at any time contain
securities which are not a constituent of the Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index, but will be
within the permitted investment universe of the Sub-Funds.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented, unless otherwise
stated.

All references to net asset value ["MAV") throughout these financial statements refer to net assets
attributable to registered participating holders of Units (“Unitholders”) unless otharwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Funds have been prepared in accordance with International Financkal
Reporting Standards ("IFRS").

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The financial
staternents of each sub-fund have been prepared on a going concern basis with the exception of
Series 2016 |PX - Nikkei 400 Fund which has been prepared on a non-going concern basis.

The preparation of the financlal statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongolng basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the financial year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

The functional currency of the Sub-Funds [excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) as well as the operational
currency of the redeemable participating units (the “Units”) i Japanese Yen (“JPY"). The financial
staternents of the Sub-Funds (excluding Series 2018 S&FP 500 Fund) are presented in JPY. The functional
and presentation currency of Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund Is USD as this is the currency in which the
Sub-Fund holds the majority of iInvestments.

MNew standards, amendmeants and Interpretations [ssued and effective for thae financial year ended
30 June 2022

There are no new standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards issued and effective for
the financial year beginning 1 July 2021 that have a significant impact on the Sub-Funds' financial position,
performance or disclosures in Its financial statements.

MNew standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year ended
30 June 2022 and not early adopted

There are no new standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards Bsued and but not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 July 2021 that have a significant impact on the Sub-Funds'
financial pasition, performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

There are no other standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards.
(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
i) Classification

The Sub-Funds classify their investments in equity securities and FDI as financial assets or liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” ("IFRS 97).

(i) Valuation of Investments

1P, Morgan Mansart Management Limited (the “Manager”) has appointed State Street Fund
Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator”) for the purposes of calculating the NAV of the
Sub-funds’ and valuing each asset in accordance with the pricing hierarchy and procedures outlined
in the Securities Valuation Price Source Agreement.

The Investment Manager must assist the Administrator and the Manager in pricing the assets of the
Sub-funds’ where applicable, including the provision of any supporting pricing information.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the
difference between disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost and take into account all
brokers” eharges and commissions. Realised and unrealised gain: or losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of Comprehansive Income.
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Sub-Funds commit to purchase or sell the investments. Investments are derecognised whan the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Sub-Funds have transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

{fv) Measurement

Investrments are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs for financial assets carried at
fair walue through profit or loss are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investrments are measured at fair value. The fair value of financial
aszets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the cloze of
trading on the reporting date. The quoted market prices uszed for financial assetz held by the
Sub-Funds are the market closing prices at reporting date.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included In the Statement of Comprehensive Income within “net gains of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in the financial year in which they arise.

(e) Financial Derivative Instruments

FDI are recognised at fair value on the date on which a FDI contract is entered into and subsequently are
re-measured at their fair value. All FDI are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as
liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of FOI are included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as part of "net gain/(loss) on financial assets and financial llabilities at FVTPL". The
price s based on counterparty tradeable market price. The fair value of future contracts is based upon
daily quoted settlement prices. Changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised gains or
losses In the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of "net gain/{less) on financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL". The fair value of open forward foreign currency exchange contracts and
open foreign currency exchange spot contracts s calculated as the difference between the contracted
rate and the current forward rate that would close out the contract on the Statement of Financial Position
date.
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial asset and liabilities traded in active markets {such as publicly traded FDI and
trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the date of the Statement of Financial Position.
When the Sub-Funds hold FOI with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices as a basis for
establizshing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies this bid or asking price to the net open
position, as appropriate. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active
market Is determined using bid price of broker gquotes. In particular, the fair value of debt securities is
determined by reference to the broker guotes as obtained from independent pricing sources including
Financial Times Evaluated and Bloomberg.

(e) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financkal
Position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneoushy.

{f) Amounts due from/to broker

Amounts due from/to broker represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered at the financial year end
respactively.

(g) Income and expenses

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. It
includes interest income from cash and cazh equivalents and on debt securities at fair value through profit
or loss.

Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date gross of withholding taxes and is disclosed
separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, net of any tax credits.

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.
{h) Foreign currency translation
{i) Functional and presentation currency

lterns included in the Sub-Funds' financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic envirenment in which it operates (the “functional currency™).

This is 1PY for the Sub-Funds (excluding Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund) which reflects the primary capital
raising market. The financial statements are presented in the JPY which ks also the Sub-Funds'
{excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) presentation currency. The functional and presentation
currency of Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund is USD.
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i) Tronsactions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into
the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of all assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies ane recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

The Sub-Funds do not isolate that portion of gains or losses on trading securities and FOI which is due
to changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes in the market price of
securities. Such fluctuations are included in the net gains or losses on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(i) cCash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liguid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis, if ary,
are shown as liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

(i) Cash at Broker

Cash at broker includes margin deposits for futures contracts which relates to collateral hald with the
relevant broker.

(k) Redeemable participating units

Unitholders may request the Sub-Funds to redeem all or any of their units on any redemption date at the
net asset value per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the redemption procedures. The
minimum redemption amount that applies to the Sub-Funds are contained in the Prospectus or, as the
caze may be, the relevant Supplement. The Manager may, in its absolute discretion, walve the minimum
redemption amount for each class in general, or in respect of a specific redemption request in whole or in

part.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund have two classes of units in issue as at 30 June
2022, Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund has eight classes of units in [ssue as at 30 June 2022, Units are classified
as equity when there is only one class of units outstanding for a Sub-Fund as at the Statement of Financial
Position date and these units meet all the other conditions of equity classification under 1AS 32 “Financial
Instrurmnents Presentation”, including the condition that these units were the most subordinated units in
igzue in that Sub-Fund.

Exl
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(I} Taxation

The Sub-Funds currently incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Withholding taxes are shown as a separate itern In the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Refer to Mote 15 for details of taxation.
{m) Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of the Trust and each Sub-Fund are borne by the respective Sub-Funds. The
preliminary expenses incurred in the establhment of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are recognised as
expenses of the Sub-Funds in the financial year in which they arize.

(n) Distributions

The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the distributions payable to the
Unitholders of the Sub-Funds. All distributions will be paid net of any taxes required to be withheld.

3. Financial risk management

The Sub-Funds activities expose them to a variety of risks, including but not limited to market price risk,
interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments held, The
financlal Instruments are held in accordance with the published investment policles of the Sub-Funds and
managed accordingly to achieve the investment objectives.

The risks and respective risk management policies employed to manage these risks are disclosed below:
(a) Market price risk

Market rizk arises mainly from uncertalnty about future prices of financlal instruments held. It reprezents
the potential loss the Sub-Funds might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements. Market risk is managed by the Manager. In the case of these Sub-Funds, market risk within
the FOI will be significant, but is entirely in line with investor returns. Realised and unrealised gains are
recognisad in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which they arize,

The effects of the infectious rezpiratory illness caused by coronavirus known as COVID-19 which gave way
to an extended global pandemic, and noted in the previous Annual Report, have been mitigated; the
various restrictions and disruptions to daily life have eased and notwithstanding other global issues,
uncertainty and global concerns brought about by COVID-19 are no longer widespread.
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk [continued)

MNow in the aftermath of the pandemic, the operations of the Trust continue as normal. Alongside the
wider industry, the Manager's working practices have evolved to incorporate a degree of flexible working,
with no impact to the Trust.

As at reporting date the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2022
IPY'000

Held for trading

Equities 2,330,852

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards) 2,330,852
Held for trading
Fuituras (19,185)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards) (19,185)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY23,116,670.

Series 2016 MNikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2022
JPY'000

Held for trading

Equities 2,252,965

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards) 2,252 965

Held for trading
Futures [43,832)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {excluding Forwards) (43,832)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk [continued)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY22,051,330.

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2022
UsD'o00

Held for trading

Equities 108,145

Inwestrment Fund 2,602

Futures 45

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards) 110,792

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
501,107,920,

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2021
JPY'000

Held for trading

Futures (3,293)

Total financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards) (3,293)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market price risk [continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund (continued)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY(32,930).

Series 2016 MNikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2021
IPY'000

Held for trading

Equities 17,589,263

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards)
Held for trading
Fuituras (4,262)

17,589,263

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (excluding Forwards) (4,262)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY175,850,010.

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2021
USD'000

Held for trading

Equities 351,033

Investrent Fund 2,951

Futures 97

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss |excluding Forwards) 354 081

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund’s net assets

attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
US03,540,810.
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair values of financial instruments. Changes to prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of
future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held. In general, if interest
rates rize, the value of fixed incorme securities will decline. A decline in interest rates will in general have
the opposite effect. Other assets and liabilities bear no interest rate risk. The Sub-Funds invest primariby in
equity securities, therefore iz not significantly exposed to interest rate risk and no sensitivity analysis has
bean presented.

(e) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Sub-Funds are not exposed to currency risk arising from balances and transactions in
foreign currencies as the majority of their azsets and liabilities are denominated in JPY and USD, the
Sub-Funds’ functional and presentation currency. Accordingly, the Manager considers that it is not
necassary to present a sensitivity analysis of currency risk.

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an Issuer or a counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment
(including payment of amounts in full when due) that it has entered into with the Sub-Funds.

The Sub-Funds will be exposed to eredit risk on parties with whaom it trades and will alse bear the risk of
settlernent default. Cash and trading securities are held with the Custodian throughout the year. All
trading securities held by the Sub-Funds are companies listed on recognised stock exchanges in Japan and
the United States, None of them are in the nature of debt. The settlement of equities with the
counterparty is on an against delivery basis and is regulated by rules of respective stock exchanges. In
general, there is no credit risk involved for such kind of cash settlement.

For the purpose of cash management, the Sub-Fund has bank accounts with the Custodian and Broker.
Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed State Street Custodial Services
(Ireland) Limited and State Streat Bank and Trust Company as its Custodian.

All the assets/(liabilities) of the Sub-Funds were held with the Custodian except cash held at the Broker,
Mizuho Securities Singapore, for futures trading.
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Credit risk (continued)

The tables below summarizes the amount of the Sub-Funds' assets held with the Custodian and Broker
with external rating and maximum exposure to credit risk as at 20 June 2022 and as at 30 June 2021:

30 June 2022 S&P Series 2016 Series 2016 Series 2018 Series 2016
Global TOPIX MNikkei 225 S&P 500 JPX - Nikkei 400

Ratings Fund Fund Fund Fund®

IPY'000 IPY'000 UsD'000 IPY'000

Assets at Custodian Af- 2,766,777 2,784 460 112,510 77
Azzets at Broker A 126,352 174,540 BOg .

The Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 June 2021,

30 June 2021 S&P Series 2016 Series 2016 Series 2018 Series 2016
Global TOPIX Mikkei 225 SEP 500 JPX - Nikkei 400

Ratings Fund Fund Fund Fund®

IPY'000 IPY'000 UsD'000 JPY'000

Aszzets at Custodian Af- 450,577 17,868,382 358,974 321,432
Assets at Broker A 120,523 332877 1421 .

IThe Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 June 2021.
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial

liabilities.

The Sub-Funds are exposed to daily cash redemptions of participating units. Sub-Funds therefore inwvest
the majority of theirs assets in Investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily
disposed. The Sub-Funds' majority assets are listed securities which are considered readily realizable as

they are listed on well establizhed stock exchanges.

The tables on the following page analyse the Sub Funds’ financial liabilities which will be settled on a net
basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial
Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows. All payables are due for settlement within one month.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
30 June 2022

Financial llabllities at fair value through profit or loss
Withhalding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Payable for investments purchased

License fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Less than 1 month
IPY'000
19,185
584
10,960
1,404
6,080
7,700
1,264
56,871
n

741

2,900,739

3,005,549
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund
30 June 2022

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

License fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
30 June 2022

Financial llabllities at fair value through profit or loss

Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Less than 1 month
JPY'000

43,832

438

14,806

9,832

3,263

2,385

4,248

993

2,928,596

3,008,393

Less than 1 month
UsD'000
1,131

a3

27

57

139

73

B

51
112,945

114,464
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund®

30 June 2022 Less than 1 month

JPY'000
Legal and professional fees payable 77
Total liabilities 77

IThe Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 June 2021.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
30 June 2021 Less than 1 month
IPY'000
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3,293
Administration fee: payable 8,640
Audit fees payable 1,283
Management fees payable 11,038
Custodian fees payable 7,573
Legal and professional fees payable 4,281
Other payables 565
Met asset value attributable to redeaming participating unitholders 548,144
Total liabilities 584,817
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund
30 June 2021

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professicnal fees payable

License fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
30 June 2021

Financial llabllities at fair value through profit or loss
Withhalding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Payable for iInvestments purchased

License fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Less than 1 month
JPY'000
4,262
2,474
3,733
699
20,550
926
5,110
4,556
494

18,183,274

18,226,078

Less than 1 month
UsD'000
841

61

65

57

146

61

9

39

1

55

360,121

361,457
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)
(&) Liguidity risk [continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund®

30 June 2021 Less than 1 month

JPY'000
Withholding tax payable 2,870
Audit fees payable 16
Legal and professional fees payable 1,555
Payable for units redeemed 336,911
Total liabilities 341,352

IThe Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 June 2021.

(f) Capital risk management

The Sub-Funds' capital is represanted by the Units in the Sub-Funds and shown as net assets attributable
to the holders of redeemable participating units in the Statement of Financial Position. In order to achieve
the investment objectives, the Sub-Funds endeavor to invest its capital in accordance with the investment
policies as outlined in the Prospectus, whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests.
Sueh liguidity is augmented by the holding of liguid investments.

4. Fair value measurement

The Sub-Funds classify falr value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflects unadjusted gquoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Sub-Funds have the ability to access at measurement date;

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and are therefore
classified within Level 1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than guoted prices that are observable for the asset or llability either directly or
indiractly, including inputs in markets that are not consldered to be active:

Investrients that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on gquoted
market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are
classified within Level 2.

As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to
transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/er non-transferability, which are
generally based on avallable market information.
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

Level 3 - Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs could have a significant impact on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an Input |5 assessed against the fair value measurement in its
entirety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on
unobservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors
spacific to the asset or llability.

The determination of what constitutes "obhservable” reguires significant judgrment by the Managars. The
Managers consider observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
invalved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and llabilities
measured at fair value at the financial year ended 30 lune 2022:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IPY'000 IPY'000 IPY"000 JPY'000
Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 2,330,852 - = 2,330,852
Total 2,330,852 - - 2,330,852
Financial Liabilities
Financial Habilitles at fair value
through profit or loss
Futures {19,185) - - [19,185)
Total (19,185) - - {19,185)
43
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

IPY'000 IPY000 JIPY"000 JPY'000
Financial Assets
Financlal assets at falr value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 2,252,965 - - 2,252,965
Total 2,252,965 - - 2,252,965
Financial Liabilities
Financial labilitles at fair value
through profit or loss
Futures (43,832) - = (43,832)
Total (43,832) - - {43,832)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total

UsD'000 usD'o00 UsSD'000 UsD'000
Financial Assets
Financlal assets at falr value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 108,145 - - 108,145
Irwvestiment Funds 2,602 - - 2,602
Futures 45 - - 45
Open Forward Contracts - 10 - 101
Total 110,792 101 - 110,893
Fimancial Liabilities
Financial Habilftles at fair value
through profit or loss
Open Forward Contracts - {1,131) - {1,131)
Total = {1,131) = {1,131)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value at the financial year ended 30 June 2021:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

IPY'000 IPY'000 JPY"000 JPY'000
Financial Liabilities
Financial Habilftles at fair value
through profit or loss
Futures (3,293) - - (3,253)
Total {3,293) - - {3,293)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

IPY'000 IPY000 JIPY"000 JPY'000
Financial Assets
Financlal assets at falr value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 17,589,263 - - 17,589,263
Total 17,589,263 - - 17,589,263
Financial Liabilities
Financial labilitles at fair value
through profit or loss
Futures (4,262) - = (4,262)
Total {4,262) - - {4,262)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

UsD'000 UsD'o0o UsSD'000 UsD'000
Financial Assets
Financlal assets at falr value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 351,033 - - 351,033
Irwvestiment Funds 2,951 - - 2,951
Futures 97 - - 97
Total 354,081 - - 354,081
Financial Liabilities
Financial labilitles at fair value
through profit or loss
Open Forward Contracts - (841) = (841)
Total - (Ba1) - (841)
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PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement [continued)

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the
financial year and are deemed to have occurred when the pricing source or methodology used to price an
investment has changed which triggers a change in level as defined under IFRS 13. There were no
transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the financial year.

Azzets and liabilities not carried at fair value are carried at amortizsed cost; their carrying values are a
reasonable approximation of fair value. Cash includes deposits held with banks and other short-term
investments in an active market and they are categorised as Level 1. Recelvable for investments sold and
other recaivables include the eontractual armounts for settlement of trades and other obligations due to
the Sub-Funds. Other payables represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Sub-Funds
for settlement of trades and expenses. All receivable and payable balances are categorised as Level 2. The
value of redeeming participating units Is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and
all other liabilities, A demand feature is attached to these units, as they are redeemable at the holders
option and can be put back to the Sub-Funds at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Sub-Fund's net asset value attributable to the share class, As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most
appropriate categorisation for the net assets attributable to holders of redeeming participating units.

5. Financial instruments by category
Financial assets

Apart from Investments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position which are classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, all other financial assets as disclozed in the Statement of Financial Position,
including other receivables, amounts due from broker and cazh and cash equivalents, are categorised as
"financial assets at amortised costs".

Financial Kabilities

Apart from investments disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position which are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, all financial liabilities as disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position, including
administration fee payable, management fee payable, payable for investments purchased, trustes fas
payable, audit fee payable, amounts due to broker and other payables are categorised as “financial
liabilities at amortised costs™.

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category
The Sub-Funds hold futures and forwards.

A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy or sell a security or currency at a specific
price or rate at a future date. The dally change In contract value is recorded as an unrealised gain or loss
and the Sub-Funds recognise a realised gain or loss when the contract is closed. Unrealised gains and
loszes on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of "net
gain/{loss) on financial assets and financial liabilities at FYTPL".
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

A forward currency contract is an agreement between twio parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price
on a future date (or to pay or receive the amount of the change in relative values of the two currencies).
The market price of a forward currency contract fluctuates with changes in forward currency exchange
rates,

Az of 30 June 2022, the Sub-Funds’ Statemant of Financial Position included the following futures:

30 June 2022 Motional value Fair value

IPY'000 JPY'000
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 580,200 (19,185)
Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund 713,770 (43,832)
30 June 2022 MNaotional value Fair value

usD'000 USD'000
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 2,797 45

As of 30 June 2022, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following forwards:

30 June 2022 Unrealised gain Unrealised loss
UsD'000 UsD'000
Serles 2018 S&F 500 Fund 101 {1,131)

As of 30 June 2021, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following futures:

30 June 2021 MNotional value Fair value

IPY'000 IPY'000
Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 547,260 (3,293)
Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund 573,993 (4,262)
30 June 2021 MNotional value Fair value

UsD'000 USD'000
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 6,551 97
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

As of 30 June 2021, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following forwards:

30 June 2021 Unrealised gain

Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund

Unrealised loss
USD'000
(841)

7. MNet gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised (loss) on investments
Realised gain on financial derivatives
Change in unrealized (loss) on investments

Change In unrealized (loss) on financial derivatives

Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund

Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments
Realised (loss) on financial derlvatives
Change in unrealized (losz) on investments

Change in unrealised (loss) on financial derivatives

30 June 2022
IPY'000

(4,468)
5,829
(138,776)
(15,882

(153,307)

30 June 2022
IPY'000

1,414,139
(58,337)
(2,133 886)
(39,570)

(817,654)

51

170/273



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

7. MNet gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2022
UsD'o00

Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments 22,220

Realised (loss) on financial derivatives {212)

Change In unrealized (loss) on Investments [54,595)

Change in unrealized (loss) on financial derivatives (52)
{32,639)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2021
JPY'000

MNet gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised gain on investments 370,991

Realised gain on financial derivatives 36,052

Change In unrealised gain on Investments 432,487

Change in unrealized gain on financial derivatives 5,422
844,952
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

7. MNet gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund

30 June 2021
IPY'000

Met gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial derivatives
Change In unrealized gain on Investmaents

Change in unrealized gain on financial derivatives

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

1,900,775
167,877
2,347,248
1,229

4,417,129

30 June 2021
UsD'000

Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss:

Realised gain on investments

Realised gain on financial derivatives
Change In unrealised gain on Investments

Change in unrealized (loss) on financial derivatives

86,703
2,024
40,368
(296)

128,699
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

7. MNet gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Series 2016 IPX — Nikkel 400 Fund® 30 June 2021
IPY'000

MNet gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised gain on investments 1,162,984

Realised gain on financial derivatives 19,473

Change In unrealized gain on Investmaents 1,100,217

Change in unrealized gain on financial derivatives 7,961

2,290,635

IThe Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 June 2021.
8. Redeemable participating units in issue

Redeemable participating units were classified as an equity for Series 2016 IPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and are
classified as a liability for Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P
500 Fund. Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund, Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 $&P 500 Fund do not fulfil
the criteria of having a single share class required to classify redeemable participating units as equity.
Redeemable participating units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the date of the
Statermnent of Financial Position If the holders exercise their rights to put the units back to the Sub-Funds
for cash at the relevant dealing day.

Redesmable participating units are lssued and redeemed at the option of the holders at prices based on
the Sub-Fundsz’ NAV per unit at the time of issue or redemption.

The Sub-Funds” NAY per unit iz calculated by dividing the net azsets attributable to holders of each class of
redeemable participating units with the total number of cutstanding redeemable participating units for
each respective class. In accordance with the provisions of the Sub-Funds’ regulations, Investment
positions are valued based on the guoted market prices for the purpose of determining the NAY per unit
for subscriptions and redemptions. Unitholders may redeem their units on any dealing day which is daily
in whole or in part. In addition, in accordance with the explanatory memorandum, the preliminary
expenses incurred in the formation of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are borne by the Sub-Funds.

Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund and Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund have two classes of units in ssue as at 30 June
2022, Class A and Class B. Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund has eight classes of units in issue as at 30 June
2022: Class A, Clazs B, Class &_2, Class B_2 Class A_3, Clasz B_3, Class A_4 and Clazs B_4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)

The movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the financial year from 1 July 2021 to

30 June 2022 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

Mumber of units in ssue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued

MNumber of units in lssue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - IPY000

Subscriptions during the financial year - JPY

Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund

Number of units in lEsue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued
Units redeemed

MNumber of units in lssue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000
Met asset value per unit - IPY000

Subscriptions during the financial year - JPY
Redemptions during the financial year - JPY

30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Class A Class B
272,972 9,891
1,249,000 .
1521972 4891
2,882.037 18,702

1.89 1.89

2 485,597,430 .
30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Class A Class B
294,791 340,223
1,482,400 338,100
(1,776,400) (567,100)
701 111,223

20,957 2,907 639

2649 26.14

42 589,806,752 9,440,205,541
(50,289, 7488 810) (16,159,958 891)
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Class A Class B
Mumber of units in ssue at the beginning of the
financial year 180,515 527422
Units fssued 59,900 834,200
Units redesmed (225,500) (852,500)
Murmber of units in ssue at the end of the financdal
year 14,915 509,122
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'O00 21,038 47,726
MNet asset value per unit - USD'000 141 0.09
Subscriptions during the financial year - USD 99,366,155 112,391 461
Redemptions during the financial year - USD (363,200,584) {115,361,154)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Class AZ* Class B2
Mumber of units in ssue at the beginning of the
financial year - -
Units issued 32,008 1,029,267
Units redeemed {12,700) (721,700)
Murnber of units in issue at the end of the financial
year 19,308 307,567
Met assets attributable to Unithelders - USD'000 16,294 18,601
Met asset value per unit = USD'000 0.84 0.06
Subscriptions during the financial year - USD 31,362,682 87,709,272
Redemptions during the financial year - USD {13,085,075) (82,757,618

Ighare dass launched an 34 August 2021,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Class A3® Class B3®

Mumber of units in ssue at the beginning of the

financial year - -

Units kssued 39,706 269,998

Units redeemed {29,000) (269,200)

MNumber of units in lEsue at the end of the financial

year 10,706 798
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'O00 8,599 47
MNet asset value per unit - USD'000 0.80 0.06
Subscriptions during the financial year - USD 37,418 426 21,795,793
Redemptions during the financial year - USD (27,400,890) (22,285,224)

*Share dass launched an 11 January 2023

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Class A4? Class B4*

Mumber of units in ssue at the beginning of the

financial year - -

Units fssued BEO 760

MNumber of units in lssue at the end of the financial

year GEO 760
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'000 592 48
Met asset value per unit - USD'000 0.a7 0.06
Subscriptions during the financial year - USD 680,015 &6,456

*hare dass launched an 26 January X023

57

176/273



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)

As at 29 June 2021, Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei 400 Fund has the following redeemable participating units in
issue: Met assets attributable to Unitholders JPY336,911,187, Number of Units in Issue 20,000 and MNet
asset value per unit IPY16,845.56.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund have two classes of
units in issue as at 30 June 2021, Class A and Class B,

The movement: of the Redeemable Participating Units during the financial year from 1 July 2020 to
30 June 2021 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2021 30 June 2021
Class A Class B

Mumber of units in Esue at the beginning of the

financial year 4,100,000 12,891

Units fssued 2972 -

Units redeemed (3,830,000) (3,000)

MNumber of units in lEsue at the end of the financial

year 272972 9,891

MNet assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000 529,004 19,140

MNet asset value per unit - 1PY"000 1.94 1.94

Subscriptions during the financial year - JPY 5,145,008 -

Redemptions during the financial year - IPY (6,689,417,400) (5,145,750)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)

Series 2016 MNikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2021 30 June 2021
Class A Class B
Mumber of units in ssue at the beginning of the
financial year 366,000 487,023
Units fssued 365,791 87,000
Units redesmed (437,000) (233,800)
Murmber of units in ssue at the end of the financdal
year 294,791 340,223
MNet assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000 8,495 444 9,687,830
MNet asset value per unit - 1PY"000 28.82 28.47
Subscriptions during the financial year - IPY 9,536,729,094 2,491 424,040
Redemptions during the financial year - IPY {10,711,057,590) (6,464,516,434)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund 30 June 2021 30 June 2021
Class A Class B
Mumber of units in Esue at the beginning of the
financial year 158,415 1,182,422
Units ssued 725,700 816,000
Units redeemed (703,600) (1,471,000)
Murmber of units in Bsue at the end of the finandal
year 180,515 527422
MNet assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'O00 290,930 69,191
MNet asset value per unit - USD'000 161 0.13
Subscriptions during the financial year - USD 884,121 767 98,312,814
Redemptions during the financial year - USD (989,194,365) (163,406,583)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2021
Class A
Mumber of units in Esue at the beginning of the financial year 789,400
Units redeemed (789,400)
Mumber of units in Esue at the end of the financial year -
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - 1PY'000 E
MNet asset value per unit - 1PY"000 -
Redemptions during the financial year - IPY (13,243,999,616)

IThe Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 june 2021.

9.

Management fees

An aggregate amount of the management fees described below as (a), (b) and {c) Is payable to the
Manager out of the assets of the Sub-Funds. The Manager will pay, out of the management fees, the feas
of the Investment Manager and the Distributor, as allocated by the Manager as follows, subject to its
absolute discretion.

The management fees are calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued dally and payable in JPY quarterly in
arrears for Serlas 2016 TOPIX Fund and Serles 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund and payable in IUS Dollars guarterly in
arrears for Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund.

(a)

(b)

For Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund the Manager is entitled to receive out of
the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.02% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds. For
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund the Manager Is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund the
following Net Azset Value percentage per Class: Class A A 2 A 3 A 4-0.02% and Clazs B,B_2,B_3,
B_4- 0.04%.

Investment Manager Fee:

For Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund the Investment Manager is entitled to
receive gut of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: (i) 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than 1P¥25 billion; (i)
0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is
more than JPY25 billion and equal or less than JIPYS0 billion; and (i) 0.05% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than JPYS0 billion, provided that
the Investment Manager shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY10,000,000 per annum. For
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. Management fees (continued)

Serbes 2018 S&P 500 Fund the Investment Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: (i) 0.11% of the MAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which ks equal to or less than USD250 million; (i) 0.10% of the NAV of
the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than
USD250 million and equal to or less than USDS00 million; and (i) 0.09% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which Is more than USD500 million, provided
that the lnvestment Manager shall be entitled to a minimum of USD100,000 per annumm.

(e} For all Sub-Funds the Distributor s entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an
annual rate of 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY11,355,192 (30 June 2021: JPY12,109.480) with JPY6,080,217 (30 June 2021: JPY11,037.674) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
IP¥23,221,097 (30 June 2021: JPY23,925,922) with JPY9,831,513 (30 June 2021: 1PY20,550,072) in
outstanding feas at the end of the finandal year.

The investment management fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
USD338,107 (30 June 2021: USDAT4,048), with USD139,192 (30 June 2021: USD145,547) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Serles 2016 IPX — Nikkel 400 Fund for the financial year
amounted to IPYMIl (30 June 2021: 1PY13 737,078) with JPYNIl {30 Juna 2021: IPYNIl) In outstanding fees
at the end of the financial year.

10. Trustee fees

Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee") is entitled to receive out of the assets of
the Sub-Funds, the annual Trustee Fee of USD2,500 payable quarterly in arrears, plus fees for additional
time, disbursements, out-of-pocket expenses and start-up expenses.

The Trustee fees for the Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to IFYNI (30 June
2021: IPY140,935) with JPYMIl (30 June 2021: IPYMIl) In outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee feas for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYNI (30 June
2021: IPY140,935) with JPYMIl (30 June 2021: IPYMIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to USD13,407 (30 June
2021: USD11,745) with USDNIL {30 June 2021: USDNII) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. Trustee fees {continued)

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 JPX = Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYNII
{30 June 2021: JIPY140,935) with JPYNIl (30 June 2021: IPYNIl) in cutstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.

11. Administrator fees

For Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund and Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund, State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited
(the “Administrator™) is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of: (i)
0.07% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate MAY of the Sub-Funds which is equal
to or less than JPY 10 billion; {ii) 0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAY
of the Sub-Funds which is more than IPY10 billlon and equal to or less than JPY25 billien; (iil) 0.05% of the
MAY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Funds which is more than
JPY25 billion and equal to or less than JPYS0 billion; and (iv) 0.04% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for any
portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Funds which is more than IPYS0 billion, provided that the
Administrator shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY720,000 per manth,

The Adminkstrator Fee iz calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be acerued daily. The Adminkstrator
Fee is payable in Japanese Yen quarterly in arrears.

The Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Funds for its disburserments and out-of-pocket expenses.

For Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd. (the “Administrator”) is entitled
to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an annual rate of: (i) 0.07% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than USD 100 millien; (i)
0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which iz more
than USD 100 million and equal to or less than USD 250 million; (iil) 0.05% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 250 million and equal to or less
than USD 500 million; and {iv) 0.04% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of
the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 500 million, provided that the Administrator shall be entitled to a
minimum of USD 6,000 per month. The Administrator Fee will be calculated on each Valuation Day and
shall be accrued daily. The Administrator Fee shall be payable in US Dollars quarterly in arrears. The
Administrator will ba relmbursad by the Sub-Fund for its disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses,

The Administrator fees for the Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
IPYE,635,999 (30 June 2021: IPY6,780,861) with IPY10,959,739 (30 June 2021: IPYE G39,740) in
outstanding fees at the end of the finandal year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund for the finandal year amounted to
JPY¥11,072,543 (30 June 2021: JPYE261,268) with JPY14,805553 (30 June 2021: JPY3,733,010) in
outstanding feas at the end of the financal year.

The Administrator fees for the Serles 2018 SEP 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
U50152,753 (30 June 2021: USD221,752) with USD27,476 (30 June 2021: USDES,164) in outstanding fees
at the end of the financial year.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Administrator fees (continued)

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 JPX = Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYNII
{30 June 2021: IPY3,696,368) with JPYMII (30 June 2021: JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.

12, Custodian fees

For Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund, State Street Custodial Services (Ireland)
Limited (the “Custodian”) is entitled to receive out of the assaets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of
0.01% of the NAVY of the Sub-Funds, provided that the Custodian shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY
120,000 per month. The Custodian Fee will be calculated each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily.
The Custodian Fee shall be payable in Japanese Yen gquarterly in arrears.

For Serles 2018 S&FP 500 Fund, State Street Bank and Trust Company (the “Custodian®) s entitled to
receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund,
provided that the Custodian shall be entitled to a minimum of USD 1,000 per manth. The Custodian Fee
will be calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be acerued dally. The Custodian Fee shall be payable in
US Dollars guarterly In arrears. The Custadian will be reimbursed by the Sub-Fund for its disbursaments
and out-of-pocket expenses,

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY6,926,057 (30 June 2021: JPYNIl) with JPY7 659,930 (30 June 2021: JIPY7.572,772) in outstanding fees
at the end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund for the financlal year amounted to
IPY¥2,632,240 (30 Jurwe 2021: IPY17,147,125) with JP¥3,262,939 (30 June 2021: IPY926,461) in outstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
US0303,899 (30 June 2021: USD275,012) with USD7 2,909 (30 June 2021: USDE0,648) in outstanding fees
at the end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Serles 2016 JPX — Nikkel 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to IPYNII
{20 June 2021: IPYS,577,747) with IPYNII (30 June 2021: IPYNIl) In outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.

13, License fees

Fees incurred in connection with the reference to a licensed index are paid to the Nikkei 225 Index
licensor;, S&P 500 Index licensor and TOPIX Index licensor and borne by the Sub-Funds.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13, License fees |continued)

The License fee for the Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund is 0.02% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund provided that the
licensor shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY100,000 per annum for this Sub-Fund. For Series 2018 S&P
Fumd it is 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. For the Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund is (1) 0.01% of the NAV of the
Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which iz less than JPY10 billion; (i) 0.005%
of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or
more than JEY10 billlon and less than JPY50 billion; (iil) 0.003% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion
of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or more than JPYS0 billion and less than
JPY100 billion; () 0.002% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the
Sub-Fund which is equal to or more than JPY100 billion and less than JPY300 billion; (v) 0.001% of the NAY
of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or more than
JPY300 billion and less than JPYS00 billion and {vi) 0.0005% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of
the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or more than JPYS00 billion, provided that the
licensor shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY100,000 per annum.

The License fee will be calculated on each Waluation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY except
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, will be payable in US Dollars.

The License fees for the Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financlal year amounted to JPY214,140 (30 June
2021: IPY323,557) with JPY21,119 (30 June 2021: IPYNIl} in outstanding fees at the end of the financial
year.

The License fees for the Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY3,110,382 (30 June 2021: IPY3,415,347) with JPY4,247.524 (30 June 2021: JPY4,556,142) in
outstanding feas at the end of the financal year.

The License fee for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to USDE,199 (30 June
2021: USD6,856) with USDNIl (30 Juna 2021: USDT19) in outstanding fees at the and of the financial year.

The License fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYNII
{30 June 2021: IPY1,616,657) with JPYNII (30 June 2021: JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.

14, Distribution
The Sub-Funds’ investments are expected to generate a certain amount of income on a periodic basis.

It is the current intention of the Manager (although it is under no obligation to do so) to make semi-annual
distributions in February and August for Class A, and in May and November for Class B of each year to
Unitholders of record of the Sub-Funds on the Business Day immediately preceding the relevant
distribution date.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Distribution (continued)

Distributions may be made out of the net income, realised and unrealised capital gain: net of realised and
unrealised losses and capital of the Sub-Funds for the relevant financial year, or in such other manner as
specified in the Trust Deed. The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the
distributions payable to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds.

However, the Manager will on each occasion consult with the Investment Manager as to the amount of
such distributions and will rely on the Administrator’s continuing calculations and information as to the
amount avallable to be distributed based on the possibility of continuing sustainable pay-out ameounits on
such seml-annual basks.

All distributions will be pald net of any taxes required to be withheld.

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2022:

Series 2016 Series 2016 Series 2018

TOPIX Mikkei 225 S&P 500

Fund Fund Fund

Ex-date IFY'000 JPY'000 UsD'000

2 August 2021 - - 1,889

3 August 2021 E 39,754 .

1 November 2021 - 24,385 .

1 February 2022 = 33 881 798

& May 2022 - 55,595 82

Total distribution - 153,615 2,769
65
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Distribution (continued)

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 Jume 2021:

Series 2016 Series 2016 Series 2018 Series 2016

TOPIX Mikkei 225 SE&P 500 JPX — Mikkei 400

Fund Fund Fund Fund?®

Ex-date IPY 000 IPY'000 UsSD'000 JPY'000
03 August 2020 - - 2,489 .
04 August 2020 50,985 46,231 - 97,630
02 November 2020 113 55,853 = =
01 February 2021 13,886 10,265 904 48,122
06 May 2021 - 38,776 - .
Total distribution 64,984 151,125 3,483 145,752

he Sub-Fund ceased operations an 29 bune 3021,

15. Taxation

The Trust and its sub-funds are not subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the
Cayman lslands. The only taxes which will be chargeable on the Trust and its Sub-Funds in the Cayman
lslands are nominal amounts payable to the registrar of Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Funds are registered as an exempted trust pursuant to Section 74 of the Trusts Law. The Trustae
has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman Islands, which
provides that, for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Sub-Funds, no law that is
thereafter enacted In the Cayman lzland: imposing any tax or duty to be lavied on income or on capital
assats, gains, or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax will apply to any
property comprised in the Sub-Funds, or to any income arising under the Sub-Funds or to the Trustee or to
the Unitholders in respect of any such property or income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes s
included in thesze financial statements.

Unitholders will not be subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman lslands,
with respect to the Units owned by them and distributions received on such Units, nor will they be subject
to any estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman |slands. There are no exchange controls in Cayman.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-Funds may be subject to withholding tax imposed in the
country of origin. Investment income [s recorded gross of such taxes,

13

185/273



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

PassiM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Taxation |continued)

The Trust and its Sub-Funds have been formed as a unit trust under the Cayman Islands law. The Trust and
its Sub-Funds are assumed to be treated as a forelgn investment trust, as a matter of Japanese law, which
is similar to a securities investment trust under the Law concerning Investment Trusts and Investment
Corporations of Japan. Further, it is anticipated that the Sub-Funds are not listed on any stock exchange.

The Cayman lzlands are not party to any double taxation treaties, Under current Cayman lslands law no
tax will be charged in the Cayman |slands on profits or gains of the Sub-Funds and dividends of the
Sub-Funds will be payable te Unitholders who reside in or outside the Cayman lslands without deduction
of tax. No stamp duty iz levied in the Cayman lslands on the transfer or redemption of Units In the
Sub-Funds. The Sub-Funds invest in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countriez other
than the Cayman lzslands.

Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-assessmenit basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Funds'
broker on a "withholding™ basis.

16. Transactions with related parties

Parties are conslderad to be related if one party has the ability to contral the other party to exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

In accordance with 1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, the following are the related parties during the
financial year. Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd. acts as Investment Manager for the Unit Trust. 1P,
Morgan Mansart Management Limited acts as Manager and Alternative Investment Fund Manager for
the Unit Trust. Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited acts as Trustee for the Unit Trust. For
further details of the related party transactions, please refer to Notes 9 and 10.

There are no other related party transactions during the financial year.

17. Comparative period

The comparative amounts in these financial statements are for the financial vear ended 30 June 2021 .
18. Significant events during the financial year

Series 2006 IPX - Mikkei 400 Fund fully paid the redemption proceeds on 2 July 2021.

Serles 2018 SEP 500 Fund Clazs A2 and B2 were launched on 24 August 2021,

Serles 2018 SEP 500 Fund Clazs A3 and B3 were launched on 11 January 2022,

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund Class A4 and B4 were launched on 26 January 2022,

a7
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PassiM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)

18. Significant events during the financial year (continued)

Events arising in Ukraine, as a result of military action being undertaken by Russia in Ukraine, may impact
on securities directly or indirectly related to companies domiciled in Russia and/or listed on exchanges
located in Russia ("Russian Securities”). As at 30 June 2022, the Fund does not have direct exposure to
Ruszsian Securities. The Directors are monitoring developments related to this military action, including
current and potential future interventions of foreign governments and economic sanctions.

There were no other significant events during the financial year.
19. Post Balance Sheet events

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements there are no other significant events after the
financial year end date that would have an impact to the financial statements.

20. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 were approved and authorized for
issue by the Trustee on 9 December 2022,

68
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED)

As at 30 June 2022
Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%)
Advertising: 0.42% (30 June 2021: 0.48%)
3,000 Dentsu Group Inc 12,225 0.42
12,225 0.42
Aerospace & Defense: 0.06% (30 June 2021: 0.06%)
300 HICorp 1,089 0.04
300 Kawasaki Heavy Industries Ltd T63 0.02
1,852 0.06
Agriculture: 0.24% (30 June 2021: 0.25%)
3,000 Japan Tobacco Inc 7.038 0.24
7,038 0.24
Alrlines: 0.03% {30 June 2021: 0.03%)
300 AMA Holdings Inc 750 0.03
750 0.03
Auto Manufacturers: 2.66% (30 June 2021: 3.17%)
3,000 Hino Motors Ltd 2,091 0.07
6,000 Honda Motor Co Ltd 19,758 0.67
1,500  Isuzu Motors Ltd 2,251 0,08
600 Mazda Motor Corp 111 0.02
300 Mitsubishi Motors Carp 138 0.00
3,000 Missan Motor Co Ltd 1,585 0.05
3,000  Subaru Corp 7,234 0.25
3,000 Suzuki Maotor Corp 12,792 0.44
15,000 Toyota Motor Corp 31500 1.08
78,015 2.66
Auto Parts & Equipment: 1.79% (30 June 2021: 2.35%)
3,000 Bridgestone Corp 14 850 051
3,000  DensoCarp 21,624 0.74
3,000 JTEKT Corp 3,060 011
3,000 NGK Insulators Ltd L84 019
3,000 Sumitomo Electric Industries Ltd 4,497 0.15
1,500 Yokohama Rubber Co Ltd 2,755 0.09
52,270 1.79
Banks: 0.46% (30 June 2021: 0.51%)
300 #Aozora Bank Ltd 791 0.03
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022
Fair Value % of Total
MNominal 1P 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Banks: 0.46% (30 June 2021: 0.51%) (continued)

3,000 Chiba Bank Ltd 2,223 0.08

3,000  Concordia Financial Group Ltd 1,410 0.05
600 Fukuoka Financial Group Inc 1,466 0.05

3,000 Mitsubishi UF) Financial Group Inc 2,188 0.07
300 Mizuho Financial Group Inc 463 0.02
300 Resona Holdings Inc 153 000

3,000 Shizucka Bank Ltd 2,445 0.08
300 Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc 1,210 0.04
300 Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc 1,254 0.04

13,603 0.46
Beverages: 0.84% (30 June 2021: 1.11%)

3,000  Asahi Group Holdings Ltd 13,335 0.46

3,000  Kirin Holdings Co Ltd 6,412 0.22
600 Sapporo Holdings Ltd 1,806 0.06

3,000  Takara Holdings Inc 3,015 0.10

24,568 0.84
Building Materials: 2.61% (30 June 2021: 3.04%)
600 AGC Inc 2862 0.10

3,000 Daikin Industries Ltd 65,250 2.23
300 Nippon Sheet Glass Co Ltd 115 000
300 Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co Ltd 1,009 0.03
300 Taiheiyo Cement Corp 608 0.02

1,500 TOTO Ltd 6,720 0.23

76,564 261
Chemicals: 3.92% (30 June 2021: 5.04%)

3,000  Asahi Kasei Corp 3,108 011
600 Denka Co Ltd 1971 0.07
300 DIC Corp 722 0.02

3,000  Kuraray Co Ltd 3,285 011

1,500  Mitsubishi Chemical Holdings Corp 1,105 0.0
00 Mitsui Chemicals Inc 1,734 0.06

3,000 Missan Chemical Carp 18,750 0.64

3,000  HNitto Denko Carp 26,340 0.90

3,000 Shin-Etsu Chemical Co Ltd 45,900 157
300 Showa Denko KE 692 0.02
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022
Fair Value % of Total
Mominal IPY'000 Met Assets
Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Chemicals: 3.92% (30 June 2021: 5.04%) (continued)
3,000 Sumitomo Chemical Co Lid 1,593 0.05
3,000 Taokai Carbon Co Ltd 3,102 011
600 Takuyama Corp 1,036 0.03
3,000 Taray Industries Inc 2,284 0.08
1,500  Tosoh Corp 2,527 0,09
300 UBE Corp 605 0.02
114,754 3.92
Commercial Services: 2.35% (30 June 2021: 3.26%)
1,500 Dai Nippan Printing Co Ltd 4,389 0.15
9,000  Recruit Holdings Co Ltd 35,955 1.23
3,000 Secom Co Ltd 25,149 0.86
1,500  Toppan Printing Co Ltd 3,400 011
68,893 2.35
Computers: 1.19% (30 June 2021: 1.37%)
300 [Fujitsu Ltd 5089 0.17
300 MNEC Corp 1,581 0.06
15,000  NTT Data Corp 28,140 0,96
34,810 1.19
Cosmetics & Personal Care: 1.12% (30 June 2021: 1.82%)
3,000 Kao Corp 16416 0,56
3,000 Shiseido Co Ltd 16,338 0.56
32,754 1.12
Distribution & Wholesale: 1.88% (30 June 2021: 1.99%)
3,000 ITOCHU Corp 11,001 0.38
3,000 Marubeni Corp 3,672 012
3,000  Mitsubishi Corp 12,111 041
3,000 Mitsui & Co Ltd 5984 0.31
260 Saijitz Corp 499 0.02
3,000  Sumitomao Corp 5571 0,19
3,000 Tayota Tsusho Corp 13,290 0.45
55,128 1.88
Diversified Financial Services: 0.79% (30 June 2021: 0.70%)
3,000 Credit Saison Co Ltd 4,677 0.16
3,000 Daiwa Securities Group Inc 1,818 0.06
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As at 30 June 2022
Fair Value % of Total
MNominal 1P 000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Diversified Financial Services: 0.79% (30 June 2021: 0.70%) (continued)
3,000 Japan Exchange Group Inc L.B74 0.20
3,000 Matsui Securities Co Ltd 2,415 0.08
3,000 MNomura Holdings Inc 1,488 0.05
3,000  ORIX Corp 6,828 0.24
23,100 0.79
Electric: 0.03% (30 June 2021: 0.03%)
300 Chubu Electric Power Co Inc 410 0.01
300 Kansai Electric Power Co Inc 403 0.01
300 Takyo Electric Power Co Holdings Inc 170 0.01
983 0.03
Electrical Components & Equipment: 0.27% (30 June 2021: 0.39%)
3,000 Casko Computer Co Ltd 3,777 0.13
3,000  Fujikura Ltd 2,307 0.08
300 Furukawa Electric Co Ltd 668 0.02
600 G5 Yuasa Corp 1,274 0,04
8,026 0.27
Electronics: 4.73% (30 June 2021: 5.02%)
3,000  Alps Alpine Co Ltd 4,131 0.14
6,000 Kyocera Corp 43 536 1.49
3,000 MIMNEBEA MITSUMI Inc 6,930 0.24
2400  Murata Manufacturing Co Lrd 17,751 060
900  Nippon Electric Glass Co Ltd 2,337 0.08
600 SCREEM Holdings Co Ltd 5502 0.19
3,000  Taiyo Yuden Co Ltd 13,830 0.47
9,000  TDK Corp 37,710 129
3,000 Yokogawa Electric Corp 6,723 0.23
138,450 4.73
Engineering & Construction: 0.79% (30 June 2021: 0.88%)
3,000  COMSYS Holdings Corp 7,758 0.26
3,000  JGC Holdings Corp 5,262 018
1,500 Kajima Carp 2,336 0,08
3,000  Obayashi Corp 2,955 010
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Engineering & Construction: 0.79% (30 June 2021: 0.88%) (continued)

3,000  Shimizu Corp 2,250 0.08
600 Taisei Corp 2,535 0,09
23,096 0.79
Entertainment: 0.05% (30 June 2021: 0.06%)
300 Taho Co Ltd 1472 0.05
1,472 0.05
Environmental Control: 0.02% (30 June 2021: 0.02%)
600 Hitachi Zosen Carp L1z 0.02
512 0.02
Food: 2.58% (30 June 2021: 2.76%)
3,000  Aeon Coltd 7,062 0.24
3,000  Ajinomoto Co Inc 9,900 0.34
3,000 Kikkoman Corp 21 500 0.74
300 Maruha Michira Corp Tee 0.02
600 MELI Holdings Co Ltd 3,996 0.14
1,500 NH Foods Ltd 6,367 0.22
1,500 Hichirei Carp 3,539 012
3,000  Mippon Suisan Kaisha Ltd 1,719 0.06
3,000  Misshin Seifun Group Inc 4,764 0.16
3,000  Seven & i Holdings Co Ltd 15,801 0.54
75,514 2.58
Forest Products & Paper: 0.07% {30 June 2021: 0.09%)
300 Nippon Paper Industries Co Ltd 289 0.01
3,000 Oji Holdings Corp 1,764 0.06
2,053 0.07
Gas: 0.11% (30 June 2021: 0.10%)
600 Osaka Gas Co Lid 1,558 0.05
600 Takyo Gas Co Lid 1,684 0,06
3,242 0.11
Hand & Machine Tools: 0.22% (30 June 2021: 0.26%)
3,000  Amada Co Ltd 2,991 0.10
600 Fuji Electric Co Ltd 3,372 0.1z
6,363 0.22
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Healtheare Products: 2.79% (30 June 2021: 3.25%)

12,000 Ohympus Corp 32718 112
12,000 Terumao Corp 43 056 167
81,774 2.79
Home Builders: 0.80% (30 June 2021 0.72%)
3,000  Daiwa House Industry Co Ld 9,486 0.33
B00 Haseko Corp 953 0.03
3,000 Sekisui House Litd 7,130 0.24
17,569 0.60
Home Furnishings: 1.36% (30 June 2021: 1.69%)
3,000 Panasonic Holdings Corp 3,289 011
3,000  Sharp Corp 3,147 011
3,000 Sony Group Corp 33,285 1.14
39,721 1.36
Insurance: 0.81% (30 June 2021: 0.72%)
300 Dai-ichi Life Haldings Inc 753 0.03
3,000  Japan Post Holdings Co Ltd 2,907 0.10
900 MSEAD Insurance Group Holdings Inc 3,742 0.13
600  Sompo Holdings Inc 3,590 012
600 TED Holdings Inc 974 0.03
1,500  Taokio Marine Holdings Inc 11,855 0.40
23,821 0.81
Internet: 1.83% (30 June 2021: 3.47%)
2,400  CyberAgent Inc 3,242 011
7.200 M3 Inc 28 066 0.96
3,000 Rakuten Group Inc 1838 0.06
3,000 Trend Micro Inc 19,860 0.68
1,200  Z Holdings Corp 476 0.02
53,480 1.83
Iron & Steel: 0.10% {30 June 2021: 0.12%)
600 Japan 5teel Works Lbd 1,769 0.06
300 JFE Holdings Inc 429 0.01
300 Kobe Steel Ltd 185 0.01
300  Nippon Steel Corp 570 0.02
2,953 0.10
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Leisure Time: 0.83% (30 June 2021: 1.10%)

3,000  Yamaha Corp 16,800 057
3,000 Yamaha Motor Co Litd 7458 0.26
24,258 0.83
Machinery - Diversified: 4.28% (30 June 2021: 5.57%)

600 Ebara Corp 3,048 0.10
3,000 FANUC Corp 63,720 218
300 Keyence Corp 13914 0.47
3,000  Kubota Corp 6,081 0.21
600 OEUMA Corp 3,048 0.10
3,000 Omron Corp 20673 0.71
600 Sumitomo Heavy Industries Ltd 1,797 0.06
3,000 Yaskawa Electric Corp 13,110 0.45
125,391 4.28

Machinery Construction & Mining: 0.95% (30 June 2021: 1.13%)
3,000 Hitachi Construction Machinery Co Ltd 9,015 0.31
600 Hitachi Ltd 3,863 0.13
3,000  Komatsu Led 2,024 031
3,000  Mitsubishi Electric Corp 4,353 0.15
300 Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd 1,423 0.05
27.678 0.95

Media: 0.00% (30 June 2021: 0.00%)
Metal Fabricate & Hardware: 0.12% (30 June 2021: 0.17%)

3,000 NSK Ltd 2,190 0.07
3,000  NTN Carp 777 0.03
300 Tahao Zinc Co Ltd Bdd 0.0z
3,611 0.1z
Mining: 0.40% (30 June 2021: 0.47%)

600  Dowa Holdings Co Ltd 2,703 0.09
300 Mitsubishi Materials Corp 583 0.0z
300 Mitsui Mining & Smelting Co Ltd 951 0.03
300 Nippon Light Metal Holdings Co Ltd 448 0.02
300 Pacific Metals Co Ltd a7 0.0z
1,500 Sumitamo Metal Mining Cio Ltd 6,375 0.22
11,767 0.40
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.17% (30 June 2021: 0.16%)

3,000  Mikon Corp 4,707 0.16
300 Tayobo Co Ltd 301 0.01
5,008 0.17

Office & Business Equipment: 1.77% (30 June 2021: 2.15%)
4,500 Canon Inc 13,882 0.47
3,000  FUNIFILM Holdings Corp 21,834 0.75
3,000 Konica Minalta Inc 1,359 0.05
3,000 Ricoh Co Ltd 3,183 011
6,000  Seiko Epson Corp 11,520 0.39
51,778 1.77

Oil & Gas: 0.25% (30 June 2021: 0.23%)

3,000  ENEOS Holdings Inc 1,541 0.05
1,200 Idemitsu Kosan Co Ltd 3,924 0.14
1,200 Inpex Corp 1,764 0.06
7,229 0.25

Packaging & Containers: 0.00% (30 June 2021: 0.18%)
Pharmaceuticals: 5.80% (30 June 2021: 7.43%)

15,000 Astellas Pharma Inc 31,725 1.08
9,000 Chugai Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 31,230 1.07
9,000 Dalichi Sankyo Co Ltd 30,933 1.06
3,000 Eisai Co Ltd 17,175 0.59
3,000 Kyowa Kirin Co Ltd 9,150 031
3,000 Otsuka Holdings Co Ltd 14,454 0.49
3,000 Shionogi & Co Ltd 20,565 070
3,000 Sumitomo Pharma Co Litd 3,273 011
3,000 Takeda Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 11,454 0,39

169,959 5.80

Real Estate: 1.04% (20 June 2021: 1.19%)
3,000 Mitsubishi Estate Cao Ltd 5,907 020
3,000 Mitsui Fudosan Co Ltd 8,752 0.30
3,000 Sumitomo Realty & Development Cao Lid 10,749 0.37
1,500 Takyo Tatermono Co Ltd 2,804 0.10
3,000 Tokyu Fudosan Holdings Corp 2,142 0.07
30,354 1.04
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Retail: 7.82% (30 June 2021: 11.01%)

3,000 Citizen Watch Co Ltd 1,656 0.06
3,000  FastRetailing Co Ltd 213,240 7.28
3,000 Isetan Mitsukoshi Holdings Ltd 3,300 011
1,500  IFront Retailing Co Ltd 1,740 0.06
3,000 Marui Group Co Ltd 7,125 0.24
1,500 Takashimaya Co Ltd 1,995 0.07

229,056 7.82

Semiconductors: 6.04% (30 June 2021: 8.27%)

6,000  Advantest Corp 43 560 1.48

300 SUMCO Corp 528 0.02
3,000 Takyo Electran Ltd 132,900 4.54

176,288 6.04
Shipbuilding: 0.00% (30 June 2021: 0.01%)
300 Mitsui E&ES Holdings Co Ltd 101 0.00
101 0.00
Software: 1.40% (30 June 2021: 1.45%)

900 DeMA Co Ltd 1,700 0.06
3,000  Konami Holdings Corp 22,530 0.77
6,000 Mexon Co Ltd 16,668 0.57

40,898 1.40

Telecommunications: 6.18% (30 June 2021: 8.49%)
18,000  KDDI Carp 77202 264
1,200 Nippon Telegraph & Telephone Corp 4,675 0.16

300 Oki Electric Industry Co Ltd 222 0.01

3,000  SoftBank Corp 4,520 015

18,000  SoftBank Group Corp 94,230 3.22
180,849 6.18

Textiles: 0.,03% (30 June 2021: 0.05%)
600 Teijin Ltd Ed8 0.03
300 Unitika Lbd 69 0.00
917 0.03
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal JPY'000 Net Assets

Common Stock: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Japan: 76.93% (30 June 2021: 96.73%) (continued)
Toys & Games: 1.58% (30 June 2021: 0.93%)

3,000 Bandai Namco Holdings Inc 28,737 0.98
300 Hintendo Co Ltd 17,604 el
46,341 1.58

Transportation: 1.55% (30 June 2021: 1.94%)
300 Central Japan Railway Co 4,697 0.16
300 East Japan Railway Co 2,081 0.07
300 Kawasaki Kisen Kaisha Ltd 2,475 0,08
600 Keio Corp 2,913 0.10
1,500 Keisei Electric Railway Co Ltd 5,610 019
1,500 Mitsubishi Logistics Corp 4,867 017
900 Mitsui 05K Lines Ltd 2,795 010
300 HIFPOM EXPRESS HOLDINGS INC 2111 0,08
300 Hippon Yusen KK 2,781 010
1,500 Odakyu Electric Railway Co Ltd 2,738 0,09
600 Tobu Railway Co Ltd 1,857 0.06
1,500 Taokyu Corp 2,397 0,08
300 West Japan Railway Co 1,497 0.05
3,000 Yamato Holdings Co Ltd 6,510 022
45,429 1.55
Total Japan 2,252,965 76.93
Total Common Stock 2,252,965 76.93

Open Futures Contracts®: (1.50)% (30 June 2021: (0.02)%)

Mo of Average Unrealised % of Total
contracts  cost price loss Met Assets
IPY'000
24 28,121 Nikkel 225 (OSE) Futures September 2022 {41,888) (1.43)
14 27,764 Nikkel 225 Mini Futures September 2022 (1,544) (0.07)
Total Unrealised Loss on Futures Contract (43,832) (1.50)
Total Open Futures Contracts (43,832) (1.50)
Total Financial Derivative Instruments (43,832) (1.50)
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Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

As at 30 June 2022

Fair Value % of Total
JPY 000 Net Assets

Total investments at fair value through profit or loss 2,208,133 75.43
Cash and cash aquivalents 575,327 19.65
Cash at broker 174,540 5.96
Other assets and liabilities {30,404) (1.0u)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units 2,928,596 100.00

*Thae brodoer for Futures Cortracts is Mizsho Securities Singapare.

128
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2022 10

3,026,233,177

4,870,667

3,021,362,510

791

111,223

27,155.81

26,971.78
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2022 10
2,500 37 650
25,000,001 25,000,000
2007 11
AIFM AIFMD FCA
FCA J.P.

AIFM

AIFMD
2022 10

2022 10
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23 2,652

2 344

20 986
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2022 10 31
148.26
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

13 57,781 8,567 41,827 6,201
14 18,079,628 2,680,486 15,308,007 2,269,565
15 12,369,740 1,833,938 6,588,374 976,792
30,449,368 4,514,423 21,896,381 3,246,357
30,507,149 4,522,990 21,938,208 3,252,559

16 (13,045,259) (1,934,090) (6,376,524) (945, 383)
17,404,109 2,580,333 15,519,857 2,300,974
17,461,890 2,588,900 15,561,684 2,307,175

17 25,000,002 3,706,500 25,000,002 3,706,500
34,864 5,169 34,864 5,169

(7,572,976) (1,122,769) (9,473,182)  (1,404,494)
17,461,890 2,588,900 15,561,684 2,307,175

2022 19

2022 19

204/273



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

J.P.

2021 12 31

2021 2020
21,154,280 3,136,334 18,366,426 2,723,006
(13,711,895)  (2,032,926)  (12,523,244)  (1,856,696)
(5,442 ,955) (806,973)  (4,494,555) (666,363)
7 31,903 4,730 63,558 9,423
2,031,333 301,165 1,412,185 209,371
2,064 306 9,754 1,446
(18,462) (2,737) (11,097) (1,645)
10 2,014,935 298,734 1,410,842 209,171
11 (114,729) (17,010) (107,140) (15, 885)
1,900,206 281,725 1,303,702 193,287

2020
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J.P.

2021 12 31

o 25,000,002 3,706,500 34,864 5,169 (10,776,884) (1,597,781) 14,257,982 2,113,888
1,303,702 193,287 1,303,702 193,287

2020 12 31
25,000,002 3,706,500 34,864 5,169  (9,473,182) (1,404,494) 15,561,684 2,307,175
1,900,206 281,725 1,900,206 281,725
19 152,711 22,641 152,711 22,641
19 (152,711)  (22,641) (152,711)  (22,641)

2021 12 31

25,000,002 3,706,500 34,864 5,169 (7,572,976) (1,122,769) 17,461,890 2,588,900
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FRS 101

IFRS

46

I1AS

JP

25

101

FRS 101

52

79(a) (iv)
1AS

2006

2006

16

IAS 24

FCA

2006

1AS 38

17

IAS

IAS 24
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JpP
E14 5JP
FCA
FRS 101
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
1AS
1AS 30 31
IAS 24
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.9.1
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SPPI

JP

4.9.2

FVTPL

FVTPL
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FVOCI

SPPI

FVTPL
SPPI



FVOCI

4.9.3

ECL FVOCI

R&S

12
ECL

ECL

4.10

b)

4.11

ECL
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IFRS
EMEA

2021 2020
4,903,772 3,947,116
16,250,508 14,419,310
21,154,280 18,366,426
(13,711,895) (12,523,244)
7,442,385 5,843,182

JP
4,903,772 2020 3,947,116

2021 2020
31,903 63,558

2021 2020
2,064 9,754

JP

2021 2020
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18,462 11,007
Jp
2021 2020
72,189 68,360
23,923 22,969
2,467,675 1,944,965
381,860 299,803
224,762 153,779
152,711 147,811
2020
2021 2020
366,261 235,578
(235,578) (86,611)
130,683 148,967
(6,966) (41,827)
(8,988)
(15,954) (41,827)
114,729 107,140
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19 2020 19

2021 2020
2,014,935 1,410,842
19
2020 19 382,838 268,060
(235,578) (86,611)
(3,865) 1,458
(33,940)
(19,679) (41,827)
(8,987)
114,729 107,140
12
2021 2020
14,457 17,383
125
LTIP 2 2
2
2006 2021 LTIP 4,146 2020 6,244
2021 200,000 2006
13

2021 2020
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41,827
15,954 41,827
57,781 41,827
2021 2020
39,331 11,186
25,839
12,304,570 6,577,188
12,369,740 6,588,374
1,488,194 (2020 : 1,649,063
2021 2020
9,822,826 4,518,483
1,623,624 1,540,744
1,237,960 68,013
360,849 249,284
13,045,259 6,376,524
2,788,356 2020
2021 2020
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2020 2 2
25,000,000
2020 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002
18
2021 150,954 2020 106,388
19
JP 2015 19
2018 15 LTIP
LTIP 2021 12 31 82.7 2020
67 2025 LTIP
LTIP
LTI
RSU RSU
50 50
RSU

RSU RSU
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RSU SAR

2021 12 31 159.31 2020 106.52

152,711 2020 147,811
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Balance sheet Lt

As 8t 3 Decermber 203 2020

w Nate ¥ ]
. Hon-current assels

Deferred 1ax assel 13 £7.781 41 BIF

Current assets . .

Cash anﬁmﬂlmbfﬂl&:ﬂs 14 18,079,628 15,308,007

Deblors 15 12,368,740 5.508,374

Total current assels 30,449,368 21,896,381

Total assets ' 30,507,149 21,038,208

Current liabilities

Craditors: amounts falling due within one yaar 16 {13,045,259) [M?ﬁﬂb
-Nat current assets . 17,404,109 15,519,857
Nt sasets 17461890 15,561,684
Equity

Called-up share capilal i : 25,000,002 " 25,000,002
Other reserves 34, BE4 34884
Accumulated losses (7.57.2,876) (8,473,162}
Talal equity 17461890 15,561,684

The notes on pages 21 - 28 farm an inleégral pan of these financial statemaents,

The financial statements on pages 18 - 28 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2022 and signed on lts
behalf by:

(A 2V V.

M.P. Melling
Director

Date: 19 April 2022

-19-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Income statement

Yaar ended 31 Decermnmbar 2021 2020
Hote T ] ¥
Operating income 8 21,154,280 18,366 426
Operaling xpense & {43,791,895) [12,523.244)
ddministralive expenses {5.442,955) {4,494 555)
L i me 7 31,903 63,558
Oparating profit 2,031,333 1,412,185
. .
Intanest and similar incoma ] 2,064 0,754
Intgrest expense and similar charges 9 (18.462) (11.097)
Profit before Inceme tax 10 2,014,935 1,410,842
Incom tax expanse 1 {114.725) (107 ,140)
Profit for the financlal year 1,900,206 1,303,702

Statement of comprehensive income

There were no other ilems of comprahansive income or expense other than the profit for the financial year shown above (2020:
£nil). As a resull, profit for the financial year represents 1odal comprenensive income in both the current and prior financial year.,

The notas on pages 21 - 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-18-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

Called-up Other Accumulated

share capital TEEarYes losses Taotal equity

$ ] H ' 3

Balance as at 1 January 2020 25,000,002 34,864 (10,776 884) 14,257 982
Profit_far the financial year — — 1,303,702 1,303,702
Balance as at 31 December 2020 25,000,002 34,864 (9.473,183) 15,561,684
Profit Tor ihe fnancial yaar o = 1,800,206 1,900,206
Group share based payment costs 48 — 152 1 —_ 183 T
Growp shane based payment costs mechargad 148 - (152.711) — (152.711)
. Balance as at 31 December 2021 25,000,002 34,864 (7.572,9T8) ° 17.461 890

Other resenves relate 1o share based payment awards granbed (o employees by the Company.

The notes on pages 21 - 28 form an integral part of thess financial statemants.
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J.P. MGRGAN MANSART MAN&GEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements

1. General information

The Company is & private company limited by shares, mcorporated in England and Wales. The Company's immediate parent
underiaking is The Bear Steamns Companies LLC, inconporaled in the state of Delaware in the United States of Amenca ("U.S.")
Tre Company's ultimate parent undertaking, and the parent wndertaking of the only group in which the results of the Company are
consoldated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the "Firm” or "JPMorgan Chase™), which is incorporated in the state af Duslaware ir lne
LL3. The consolidated financial statements of the Firm can be abtained from the Company's registered office at 25 Bank Street,
Canary Wharf, London, E14 5JF, England.

Principal activities

The Company is a management and advisory company which provides investment management sarvices fo clients. Tha
Company promotes, launches and manages funds, invesimenis and olher mvestimend solulions in line with s regulatary
permssions as sel by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA®). The Company is authorised and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority ("FCA™).

2. Basis of preparation

Thesae financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Fmancial Reporting Standard 101, "Reduced Disclosure
Framework” ("FRS 101"). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measurement requirements of Inlernational Financial Reporing
Standards ("IFRS") in conformity with the requiremenits of the Companies Act 2006,

The financial statemernts have been prepared on a going concemn basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
wilh the Companies Act 2006,

The folowing exemplions from the requirements of IFRS in confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 have
been applied in the preparation of these financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

= Certain share based payment disclosures in respect of Group equity instruments (IFRS 2, "Share-based payment’
paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52}

= Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of 1AS 1, 'Presentation of financal statements’ ("1A5 1) for
reconcikation of share capital (paragraph 79{a)(iv) of I1AS 1);

+  Statement of compliance to IFRS (paragraph 16, I1AS 1)

= Cash flow statement and related notes (|AS T Cash flow statemants);

= Disclosures in relation to new or revised standerds issuwed but not yet effective (paragraph 30 end 31, 1AS 8 "Accounting
polsckes, changes In accounting estimates and errors');

= ey management compensation disclosures (paragraph 17, LAS 24 Related Party Discloawres® ("IAS 247}
= Related party lrangaciions with wholly owned group undertakings (IAS 24},

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements generally reguires management o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts recognised in the financial staterments, Due to the nature of Company's buginess and balances, no significant
accounting estimates or judgements were required in preparation of these financial statements.

4. Significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Bnancial statements. These policies have
been applied consistently in each of the years presentad, unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Functional and presentation currency

lems incledad in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entily operates (the Junctional currency”), The financial stalements are presented in United States ("L.5.") dollars,
which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

4.2 Foreign currency translation

Manetary assels and monetary liabilibes in fmign Curremncaes ane "_ﬂﬂ-'ilﬂtﬂ inte U5, dollars al rates of exchange ruling on the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items denominated in foreign currencles are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange
rales pravailing at the date of the transactions. Any gains or bosses arising on franslation are taken directly to the income
statement,

Won-maonetary items denomanated in forgign currencias (hal are staled al historical cost are transtaled into LS. dollars al the
exchange rate ruling at the dale when the iransaction was Initially recognised.

_21-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MAMAGEMENT LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

4,  Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.3 Income and expense recegnition

Assel managemsn! fees

This revenus category includes fees from imvestment manasgement and related services,

Invesiment managemaent feas are typically based on the value of assets under management and are collected and recognised at
the end of asch period aver which the management senices are provided and the valug of the managed assels & known, The
Company has contractual arrangements with third parties far providing distribution and other services in connection with its assst
management activities,

Income from Access egreement.

The Campany has contractual arrangements with another JPMargan Chase undertaking for providing services im the form of
principal manager and of investment manages far cerain investmenl siruclue and 1o assist wilh the initial preparations of such
products. Income from this agreemaent is driven by the reimbursement of cerain fixed costs as defined in the agresment
and expenses incurred in esltablishing the Fusds subject 1o the Bmils préscribed therain, |

Expensss

Amounis paid to thind-party service providers are recorded in operaling expenses under fund relaled expenses, Operating
expenses include, but are not limied o custody costs, selllement and exchange fees, regulatory fees, administrative, aedit or
legal fees. All expenses are recognised when the vnderlying contract becomas legally binding or at the agreed due dalte if later.

44 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a presend legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required (o settie the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amourd of the
obEgalion can ba made.

4.5 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
Thie Company participates in a defined contibution pension scheme in the United Kingdom.

# defined contribwlion plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays & defined level of conlributions, Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expensea and charged to the income statement on an
accrual basis,

4.6 Share-based payment awards

Share-based payment awards may be made to employees of the Company under the Firm's intentive awards schemes, The fair

value of any such shares, righis to shares or share oplions s measured when the conditional awand i made. This value s

recognised as the compensation expanse to the Company over the period to which the performance criteria relate together with

employers social security expenses or other payrall taxes, All of the awards granted are equity seftled. The Company estimales
. the level of forfestures and applies this forfeiture rate al the grant date.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents snchude cagh and balanges at banks and loans and advances fo banmks with maturites of three montng
o less ’

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payvable on Wacable profits (current tax) s recognised as an expense in the period In which the profits arise. Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as a cument lax assel only to the axtent that il is regarded as recoverable by
offsel against taxable profits arising i the current or prior peried. Cuwrent tax is measwred using tax rates and tax laws that have
pean enacted or subsiantively enacted at the balance sheet dafe.

Deferred tax s provided in full, wsing the Ebility method, on lemporary differences arising fram the diferences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilites and their carmying amounts in the financal statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates
and legislation enacted or substaniively enacted by the balance sheei dale, which are expected to apply when ihe deferred fax
asset |3 realised or the deferred tax liability is setiled. Deferred tax assets and liabdities are only offsat when there is both a legal
right and an infention to setfle on a net basis, Current tax and deerred tax are recognised directly in equity il the tax relates to
itemns that are recognised in the same or a different period in equity.

-22-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to tha financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounting policies {continued)

4.5 Financial instruments

4.9.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

i Recognition of financial assets and financial Nablltes

The Company recognises financlal assets and financial liabiies when it becomes a party to the confractual provisions of tha
mgtrument. Regular way purchases and sales of securities are recognised on the trade-dale, which is the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sl an assel.

. Classification and measurement of financal assets and financial lablities

On initial recognition, financial assels are classified and measured at amorised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI") or fair value through profit or loss ("FYTPL"). The classification is based on both the business model for
managing the financial assets and their conlraciual cash flow characteristics, Factors conssdered by the Campany In determining
the: business model for a group of assels include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the
assets” parformance is evaluated and reported fo key managemerd personnel, how risks are assessed and managed, and how
managers are compensated

On imitial recognition, financal liabiities are classified as measured at elther amorised cost or FYTPL.
a) Financial assets and financial Eabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial assals are measured al amortised cost if they are held under a business model with the abjective to collect contractual
cash flows ("Hold-1o-Collect”) and they have contractual terms under which cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest ("SPPI). In making the SPP| assessment, the Company considess whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with & basic lending arrangement (l.e. interest includes only consideration for the time valee of money, credit risk, olher basic
lending risks and & profit margin that s consistent with a basic lending amangement). Whese the contractual lerms introduce
exposure 1o risk or volaldily thal are inconsistent with a basic lending arangament, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVTPL. Financial asssts with embedded derivatives are considarad in their entirety when datermining whathar thesr
cash flows are SPPL As a result of the apphcation of these crilesia, anly debt financial assels are ebgible 1o be measured at
amorlised cost.

Financtal assets measwed at amortised cost inclede cash and cash equivalents and debtors that are in the Hold-to-Collect
bassiness. model.

Financial liabilties are measured at amaorised cost unless they are held for frading or designated as measured al FYTPL. Most of
the Company's financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measwed at amortised cost include trade
cradidors, accruals and amounts owad to ather JPMorgan Chase undertakings,

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured atl amarised cos! are initially recognised at fair value includeng Iransacton costs
[which are explained below). The inital amount recognised is subsequently reduced for principal repayments and adjusted for
acocruad interest using the effective interest method (see below). In addition, the carnying armount of financial assels s adjusied by
recagniging an expected credit |oss allowance through the profit or koss.,

The effective interes! method i3 used to allocate mterest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effectve
interast rate is the rate that discounts astimated future cash paymanis or receipts through the axpectad life of the financial assed
o financia liability or a shorter period when approgriate, 1o the net carrying amaunt af the fnancial asset or inanclal liablliry. The
effective interest rate |3 established on Initial recognition of the financial asset or financial kability. The calculation of the effectve
interest rabe includes all fees and commissions paid or received, transaction costs, and discounts or pramiums thal are an integral
parl of lhe effective interest rale. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are direclly atifibutable to the acguisition, issuance
of disposal of a financial asset or finandal liakbility.

Gadns and loases arising on the disposal of financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised in ‘trading profit’ or other
norn-interast revenua as ralevant.

4.9.2 Interest income and interest expense
Unless a financlal assel is credil-impalred, interest income ks recognised by applying the efectve interest method to the carrylng
amount of a financial asset before adjusting for any allowancs for expected credit losses. If a financial asset is credit-impairad,

intarast income is recognised by applying the effective intarest rate o the carrying amaount of the fnancial assal including any
allowance for expected creds! losses,

-23-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4,  Significant accounting policles {continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

4,92 Interest income and interest expense (continued)

Interest expense on financial labilies is recognised by applying the effeclive nterest maethod 1o the amorsed cost of financial
lizbilites. Interest imcome and expemse on financial assets and financial liabilities, excheding those dassified at FVTPL, are
prasented in interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost and FYOCH and interest expense from financial
liabilities measurad et amortised cost respectively. Interest generated as a result of 'negative’ interest rates is recognised gross,
as interest income or interest expense .

493 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises ECL for inancial assels that are measured a1 amortised cost,

Tre ECL is determined on in-scope financial instruments measured at amortized cost or PVOCL ECL are measured collectively
via a portfolio-based (modelled) approach for Stage 1 and 2 assels bul are generally measwed individually for Stage 3 assets.
ECL are forecasted gver the 12-month term (Stage 1) or expecied life (Stage 2 or 3) of in-scope financial instruments, where the
forecast pariod includes the reasonable and supportable (R&S) forecast period, the reversion period and the residual pedod and
congiders the time value of money, In determining the ECL measurement and staging for a financial instrument, the Company

applies the definiion of defaull consistent with the Basel definition of defaull lo mantain wilermity of the defnition acrass the
Finm.

Determining fhe appropnateness of the allowance s complex and requires judgment by management aboud the affect of
circumstances that are inherently uncemain, Further, estimating the aliowance involves consideration of a range of possible
outcomes, which management evaluales to determine its best estimate.

The Company must consider the appropriateness of decisions and jdgments regarding methodology and inpuls utlized in
deweloping estimates of ECL at each reporing period and document them appropriately.

4.10 Derecognition of financial assets and financial labilities 1

Financlal assets are derecognised when the contractual right to recelve cash flows from the assel has expired, or has been
transfermed with either of the following conditions mat:

a) the Company has fransferred substanitally all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset; or

b} the Company has naither retained nor transfermed substantially all of the risks and rewards; but has relinquished contral of the
assel

Financial liab#ties are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
4.11 Share Capital

The share cagial of the Company consists of ordinary shares, classfied as equity

5 Segmental analysis

The Company is nol in scope of IFRS B ‘Operating segments’, a8 its deb or equity instruments. are not traded on a public market,
tharafore ssgmental analysis of the Company's revenue and assels is nol necessary. The Company operates in the EMEA
geographic region,

6. Operating income and expense

201 2020

H H

Anoess gremen fams 4,503,772 3,947,116

Azsal managamaent feas

Inwestment management fees 16,250, 508 14,415,310
21,154, 280 18,366 426
Ciperating axpenses (13,711,855 (12.523,244)
7442 385 5,843,182

.24 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6. Operating income and expense [continued)

Investment management fses represents fees for fisk management and strategic assel management Services, via its fund
solutions business. Curent year income includes fees of 34,903,772 (2020: 53,847 116) from cther JPMorgan Chase
undertakings pertaining to the Access Agreement. Operalting expensas include fund costs paid by the Company an bahalf of
the funds. This arrangement may include payment aof all the expenses ar those expenses exceeding specific limit which hag
peen agreed upon. The Company has diaclosed operating income instead of turnover as this reflects more accurately the
resulls and nabure of the Company's activilies.

T.  Other incoma

2021 2020
$ -
Foreign exchange translation gam 31,803 63,558
8. Interest and similar income
2021 ki)
] §
Intenesd and similar income:
Finardcial instrurments at amonised cosl 2,064 B, 754
Al interest and similar income |s recaivable from other JPMorgan Chase underiakings.
9. Interest expense and similar charges
Fikdl 2020
$ 3
Interast expansa and similar charges:
Financial insbruments al amordised oost 18,462 11,087
All Interest expense and similar charges is payable lo olher JPMorgan Chase underakings.
10. Profit before income tax
2021 2020
5 5
Profl bedore ncome lax is slaled afler charging:
Auditors’ remunaration for the auds of the Company's annual financal statements - 72,138 48,360
Andil-related assurance servioes . . 23923 2096
Wages and salares 2,467 675 1,844 965
Sacial security costs 381860 2,803
Oahar pension and benafil cosls 224,782 153,778
Share based paymenis. 152,711 147,811

The average monthly number of parsons providing services to the Company during the year was 9 (2020: 6).

95 .
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11. Income tax expense

021 2020
] 3

-(a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current taxation )
Curma lax an profits for the year 366,281 XI55TR
Adjusiment in respact of prior years (F35.578) 186,611)
Todal current tax 130,683 148 96T
Defarred tax
Curman year crads (6,965) (41.827)
Effect of changes in lax rales . {E,263) i
Total deferrod tax [15,354) [#1,827)
Total tax expense for the year 114,729 107,140

(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the year is as & result of standard rate of corporation tax applied in the LK 18% (2020 19%). The
differences are explained below;

A0 030
¥ 3
Prafit bafore incoma tax 2,014,935 1,410,842
Proft before income fax mulliplied by standard rate of LK coporation tax 19% (20H0: 19%) AE2A3B 268,060
Effects of:
Acjustrent in respect of prior years {235.578) (B6,611)
Man deduciisle expenses . (3.BE5) 1,458
Income not taxable — (33,940)
Employes sipck plan (19.679) (41,857}
Tax rabs changes (B,587) —_
Total tax charge for the year 114,729 107,140
12. Directors' emolumants and staff costs
2021 2020
£ %
Aggregate emalumants 14 457 17,383
Total comribulions o a defined conribution glan — 125
Mumber of direciors with shares received of receivable under LTIPs F 2
Mumber of directors to whom defined contribution pension rights accrued _— 2

In acoordance with The Companies Act 2006, the directors’ emoluments above represent the proporion paid or payable in
respect of gualifying services to the Company including LTIPs of 54,146 n 2021 (2020:56 244). Dveclors also recaived
emoluments for non-gualifying services, which are not required to be disclesed.

Highest paid director

Faor 2021, the emolements of the highest paid deector is under £200,000 which is not required to be disclosed under the
requirements of the Companias Act 2006,

-6 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements (continued)
13. Deferred tax asset

2021 2020
H $
The balence comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Share based payments:
Cpening balance as of 1 January 41827 —
Dederred tax changed 1o income statement far e year 15,854 41,827
.ﬂlnslng'- | as of 31 D i 57,781 41,827
14, Cash and cash equivalents
AN bank balancas are held with JPMorgan Chase undertakings.
. 15. Debtors .

Flikd | ¢ 2020
§ H
Prapayment and accrued income 8,331 11,786
Csher Bssets 25838 .-
Trade debiars 12,304, 570 8,577 188
12,369,740 5,588,374

Trage debtars includes balance owed by a JPMorgan Chase undenaking of $1 488, 194 (2020; $1.649,063),

16. Creditors: amounis falling due within one year

201 2020

§ §

Trade creditors 8,622 836 4,518,463
Accruals 1,623 6522 1,540,744
Bank cverdrall 1,237 960 64,013
Tax Fabditas 60,849 249,284
13,045,259 6,376,914

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year includes balances owed to JPMorgan Chase wnderlakings of $2, 788,356 (2020:

$818,764),

17. GCalled-up share capital

2021 2020
H §

Issued and fully paid share capital
1 (2020: 1) Ordinary share of £1 2 2
25,000,000 {2030 28.000,000) Ordinary shares of £1 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

16. Pension costs

The Company participates in a defined contribulian pension scheme in the United Kingdam,

The Company recorded a total pension expense of $150,954 for the year 2021 (2020: $106,388).
19. Share based payments

Employee stock-based awards

The ultimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. has granted long-term share-based awards o certain hey
emplayees under Mg LTIP (Long Tesm Incentive Plany, as amended and restated effective May 19,2015 and further amended and
restated effectve May 15, 2018, Under the terms of the LTIP. as of 31 December 2021, 82.7 milkon shares of commaon stock wera
avalable for issuance through May 2026 (2020: 67 million shares). The LTIP is the only active plan under which the Firm is
currently granting share-based incentive awards. In the following discussion, the LTIP, plus prior Fem plans and plans assumed
a8 the resull of acquistions, are referred to collectively as the "LTI Plans® and such plans constitule the Firms' share-based
incentive plans.

The Firm separately recognisas compensation expense for each tranche of each award as if it were a separate award with its own
vesting date, For each tranche gramted, compensation expense i recognized in ling with how awards vest from the grant date
until the vesting date of the respective franche, provided that the employees will nol become full-career eligible during the westing
periad, For awards with full-career eligibllity provisions and awards granted with no future substanlive senice requirement, the
Frm accrues the astmated value of awards expecied to be awarded lo employees as of the grant date without giving
consideration to the impact of post-employment restnclions. Far each tranche granted to employees who will become full-career
eligible during the vasting perod, compensation expense is recognised in ling with how awards west from the grant date undil the
earier of the employes’s full-career eligibility date or the westing date of the respeciive tranche.

Restricted stock units

Restricted stock units ("RSUs") are awarded at no cost to the recipéent upan their grant. RSUs are generally granted annmually and
generally west at a rale of G0% aMer bwo years, 0% afer three years, and comdert inlo shares of comman slock at the vesting
date. in addition, RSUs typically include full-career eligibdity provisions, which allow employees ta continue to west upon voluntary
termination, subject to post-employment and other restriclions based on age of senvice-related requirements, A3 of these awards.
are subject to forfeiture until vested and contain clawback provisions that may result in cancallation prior 1o vesting undar cartain
specified circumstances. RSUs enlitle the recipient to receive cash payrments equivalent to any dividends paid on the underdying
common stock during the pericd the RSUs are outstanding.

Compensation expense for RSUs is measured based upon the number of shares granted mulliplied by the stock price at the grant
date, and for employee stock options and SARs (stock appreciation rights), s measured at the grant date wsing the Black-Scholes
valuation modal. Compensation expense for these awards is recognised as describesd abowve.

The weighled-average share prce dusing the year ended 31 December 2021 was $158.31 (2020: $106.52).

Compensation expense related to stock-based incentives

The total expense for the year relating to share based payments was $152.711 (2020: 3147 .811), all of which relates to equity
sattled shara based payments.

-28-
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Intertrust
Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited

(

KY1-
9005
30 4,000

State Street
Fund Services (lreland) Limited

(

78

State
Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited

(

78

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd.

2022 173 63

107-6242
2022 26 9,653

368

JP
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JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association

Fund Services (lreland) Limited

JP

J.P.
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1993

1960

2022 6 30 12,935

1

https://www.cima.ky/upimages/commonfiles/QuarterlyListofal IMutual
Fundsregisteredandl icensedwiththeCaymanlslandsMonetaryAuthority-30June2022 1657639974 .pdf

2.
A.
1. 1993
2020
CIMA
CINA

2.
3. 4(4) ()

CIMA

(i) CIMA
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CIMA
4.1
CINA CINA
REEFS
4,268.29
365.85
CINA
4.2
4.2
CINA
CINA
4,268.29
365.85
CINA

4.3 4(3) 4(4)

(1) 100,000

(i)

(iii)

100,000
(iv) 15
O (i)
CINA 4,268.29
365.85
(iii)
CIMA 3,048.78

365.85
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@iv)
CINA

4,268.29 365.85

CIMA 6

CIMA

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4
2.5

CIMA

CIMA 2
487,804.87
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CIMA A.4.2 CIMA

CIMA

43) A.4.3 4(4)
A.3 A.4.3
: CINA 6
CINA
CIMA

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4
5.5

CIMA

CIMA
24,390.24
36,585.37 50 30,487.80 42,682.93
50
8,536.59

3.1
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10.

11.

12.

13.

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5
3.6

30

1925
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N P O ©

150

7.1
7.2

7.3

7.4

1907
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10. 50
11.
12.
4.
A. CIMA
1. CIMA CIMA
CIMA
2 1
12,195.12
609.75
3.1
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA
3.2 3.1 121,951.21
3.3 3.1
CIMA
121,951.21
4.
CIMA CIMA

5.1 CIMA 5.3

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6
5.2 5.1 CIMA

CIMA

5.2.1 CIMA
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5.2.

5.2.

5.2.4 CIMA CIMA
5.3 5.1 CIMA

5.3.1

N

CIMA

w

5.3.2

5.3.
5.3.
5.3.
5.4 CIMA 5.3 CIMA

a b~ W

5.5 CIMA CIMA
5.3 5.4

5.6 5.3.4 5.3.5
CIMA CIMA
5.7 5.3.5
5.8 5.7
5.9 5.3.4 5.3.5

5.9.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

5.9.2 3 CIMA
CIMA CIMA

5.9.3 5.9.2 CIMA
CIMA
5.10 5.3.4 5.3.5 5.9 CIMA
CIMA

5.11 5.9 CIMA

5.11.1 CIMA
5.11.2 94(4)

5.11.3

5.11.4

CIMA 5.3.4 5.3.5

5.12 CIMA 5.11
5.3
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5.14 CIMA

5.15

5.16 CIMA

6. CINA
(b) ©

CIMA

CIMA

10. 9

11. 6 7

12.

5.11.3

€))

CIMA

CIMA

13. (@) 6 CINA

7

(c) 6
12,195.21

12,195.21
14. (€))
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CIVA  5.3.1
CINA
CINA
CIMA
CINA
(i)
CINA CIMA
® ©
CINMA CIMA
CINMA 6
CIMA
CINA
14 CIMA
CINA
7 CINMA (b) 6

121,951.21
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®)
14(a)
15. 6 7 8 9
16. CIMA CINA
) CINA ®)
17.
(2)CIVA (b)CINA
16
18. 16
19. CIMA 16 CINA
CIMA
CINA CIMA
B.
1. DRLA
5(4)
(i)CINA (i) (a)20
(d) CIMA
2. DRLA
3. DRLA
4 20 DRLA
@
()
@ V) DRLA
5.
6. CIMA CIMA
@)
O
(i)
(iii)

@iv)
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Q)
(b)

CIMA

@

(i)
(i)
(iv) 3

Q)
(vi)
(b)
CIMA

@
Q)
(i)
(i)
(iv)
)
i) @)

(vit) (1)

viii)

()
(&9)

(xi)
(xii)
()

CIMA

(i)

853.69

)]

3,658.54

(i)

CIMA

)]

)

9,756.10
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CIMA

10%

10%
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CINA (i)
(i) (i)

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
CIMA CIMA CIMA

24,390.24
609.75

CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA CIMA

121,951.21

CIMA
121,951.21
CIMA CIMA

CIMA CIMA 9

7.3 XVITA 12

7 CIMA CIMA
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10

11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

8.2
8.3

9.
9
9
9
. CIMA

9.3
CIMA
9.4

12
9.3

14.1

14.2

14.3

9.3

15.1
15.2

16.

16.1

4

2

.3
.4
.5

oo 0o
[N
w

© 0 0 0
e e
o N o o M

9

N

.1 CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

9.4
CIMA

9.4

CIMA CIMA

3 CIMA
CIMA

14.2

CIMA

9.4

14

14

CIMA
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16.2 94
CIMA 9.3 9.4
17. CIMA 16 CIMA
18. CIMA CIMA
18.1 CIMA
18.2
19. CIMA 9
20.
CIMA
D.
1. CIMA
CIMA
Q)
(i)
(i)
(iv)
)
CIMA
2. CIMA CIMA CIMA
3. CIMA
243,902.43
E. CINA
CIMA
1. CIMA
2. CIMA
3.
4.
5.

CIMA
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1.
2.
CIMA
3.
4. CINA
CIMA
7. (1)
(i)
Giii) 9
8. (i) (i)
9.
CINA
12,195.12 1 60,975.60
3
14(D)
14(2)
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1. 257

2. 247 248

10

H. CIMA
1. CIMA
CIMA
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(b)
(H
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(b)
©
(D
©)
®

5,000
CIMA

50,000
100,000

100,000
1,000,000

CIMA
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CIMA 20,000

CIMA

AML

(H

(i)

(i)

@iv)
@
(b)
©
(D
©)
AML

RBA
(D

POCA

AML

AML
POCA

AML

CIMA

TA
PFPA
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(b)
©
(D
©)

®
ANL

Q)

(ii) RBA
(i)

Giv) AL

)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii) AML
(ix)

&)
(x1)

AMLCO

DMLRO
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ANL ANL
ANL
FATF
ANL
MLRO
OFAC
ANL
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TA PFPA

(M

(i)

(i)
10.

(i) —

(i) -

12. AML

13.

14.
15.

16. AML AML
609,756.10 2

G20 OECD
CRS OECD
CRS
CRS
FATCA CRS AEOI
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5.

AEOI

AEOI

AEOI
Q)
(i)
Giii) TIA
(iv)
) TIA
(vi)

AEOI

DPA

DPA

DPA

CRS

AEOI

AEOI

FATCA

TIA

DPA

GIIN

AEOI
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(vi) DPA
(vii)

(viii)

DPA DPA

CIMA
4.A.5.11.2 4.B.16

CIMA

4.A.5.11.3

CIMA
4.A.5.11.4

81 50
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2016 25
J.P.
2011/61/EU
AIFMD 2012 12 19 EU No.
231/2013
2013
J.P.
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2016
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ERISA 1974
EU
FATCA FATCA
1986 1471 1474
1471(b)
FCA
@
(b)

J.P.
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@

(b)

©

)

©

®

@

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
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@

(b)

OECD

50

PRA
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(a) EEA
(b) EEA 1988
©
75
75
2016 225
JP
JpP
PRA

FCA PRA
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2014 12
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2016 TOPIX

225 2018 S&P 500 2016 JPX 400
2022 30 2022 30
IFRS 2022 30

1SA

IESBA

2016 JPX 400
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I1SA

1SA

2022 12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the sub-funds Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund,
Series 2018 S& P 500 Fund and Series 2016 JPX-Nikkel 400 Fund (together the “sub-funds”) of the PassiIM Trust (or the
“Trust”) , which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity/net assets attributable to redeeming participating unitholders and statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the
sub-funds as at 30 June 2022 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS”).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust’s unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsihilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Asdescribed in notes 1 and 2(a), the Series 2016 JPX-Nikkel 400 Fund has ceased operations and as a result, the basis of
accounting for that Fund has been changed from the going concern basis to the liquidation basis. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon, such as the trustee' s report and the investment manager’s report. Management are responsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financia statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistenciesin the
financial statements, we are required to determine whether thereis amateria misstatement in the financial statements or
amaterial misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereisa
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such interna control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for ng the Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
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Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosuresin the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Grand Cayman
December 9, 2022
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Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited s financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31
December 2021; the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financia statementsin the UK, which includes the FRC' s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relaing to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for

aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee asto the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financia statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Srategic report and Directors report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financia statements and the audit

Responsihilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsihilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statementsin accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control asthey determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue asa
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design proceduresin line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management’ s incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

Identification of journal entries for testing via the application of fraud risk criteria, including journal entries posted by
senior management;

Evaluation of entity level controls put in place by management to prevent and detect irregularities;

Enquiries with senior management, the UK Audit and Compliance Committee, internal audit and internal legal
advisors including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, and
fraud;

Assessment of whistleblowing procedures, reports and management's investigation of such matters; and

Review of key correspondence with regulatory authorities (the FCA) in relation to compliance and regul atory
proceedings.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non- compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional

misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
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we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Sarah Hayman (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
19 April 2022
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